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SHRC - FUNCTIONING

The government, this month, revealed in legislative assembly that 7319 cases since the formation of the Commission have been received, and the Commission has made recommendations on 1712 cases while as 5755 cases were disposed of respectively. Under the SHRC Act 1997, the Commission, constituted primarily for political considerations to counter the international concern on human rights violations in J&K, hundreds of victims and human right defenders have filed petitions before the Commission, notwithstanding, the Commission has no mandate to investigate into the crimes being committed by the army.  Under section 19 of the NHRC, the NHRC can refer the matter to the army. But that section is also missing in the state legislation. On the allegations against the army, SHRC has forwarded scores of complaints to NHRC for approaching the army. What has been the fate of these complaints forwarded to NHRC, the commission does not know, there’s no follow up whatsoever. In SHRC, there is no record available relating to the reference made to the NHRC. There is also confusion over the jurisdiction of NHRC in the state of J&K. The NHRC is creation of the federal act and SHRC is of the state legislation. The state Commission has in past informally questioned the overlapping jurisdiction/investigation being conducted by NHRC like in Wandhama case and suo moto actions initiated. Hitherto, the jurisdictions between the two Commissions have not settled. The state is governed by two human rights related legislations.
Notwithstanding, the limitations of the Commission, the investigation conducted in two matters;  Kashmir mass graves, in which the Commission has taken suo moto cognizance on Amnesty International’s urgent action, conducted investigations recommending DNA testing. The other matter, Kunanposhpora mass rape and torture, in which the Commission assailed the shoddy investigation of police, recommended re-investigation and payment of compensation to the victims, the commission’s order has been stayed by the High Court, was widely appreciated. It gained credibility at the cost of embarrassment to the government on international level. Nevertheless, the Commission has ordered investigations and payment of ex-gratia relief under SRO 43 in hundreds of cases but the Action Taken Reports (ATR) from the government are seldom received by the Commission, which is mandatory for the state to consider the recommendations of Commission within one month’s time. The victims have to run from pillar to post to get Commission’s recommendations implemented. Since the Commission’s recommendations are not binding as far as the SHRC Act is concerned, it is the prerogative of the administration to accept or reject it. The administration is conducting parallel investigations on the recommendations made by SHRC, which takes years further adding to the miseries of the people. In most of the cases, the victims have approached the High Court for getting recommendations considered by the administration. Since High Court is not an executing agency of the Commission, it directs the administration to consider the recommendations but the Commission is not assertive. So far none of the petition has been filed by the SHRC against the government in the High Court. Though there is a provision in state human rights act.
The question arises whether the recommendations made by the Commission are merely an opinion or a suggestion which can be ignored with impunity. The Allahabad High Court in one of the petitions has recently reasoned that construction on the expression “recommend” would dilute the efficacy of the Commission and defeat the statutory objective underlying the constitution of such a body. Further adding that an authority or a government which is aggrieved by the order of the Commission is entitled to challenge the order. Since no appeal is provided by the act against the order of the Commission, the power of judicial review is available wherein the order of the Commission is questioned. In the absence of order set aside, modified or reviewed cannot disregard the order at its discretion. It has to comply the order, otherwise, the purpose of enacting the legislation will be defeated.
Commission is not merely a body which is to render opinions, which will have no sanctity or efficacy in enforcement, cannot be accepted. None of the recommendations made by the Commission have been challenged. Even in the recommendations which the administration is rejecting, no opportunity is given to the victims before rejecting by police and district administrations. All mainstream political parties have time to time highlighted the issue of human rights violations in Kashmir and have committed that they will widen the power of the Commission like the former Law Minister, Muzaffar Beigh on 31 August 2008 has stated that there’s no need of appointing Commission to inquire into the phenomenon of enforced disappearances in the state but the government will enhance the powers of SHRC, and it was a paradox that the then chairman of the SHRC, GN MIR, resigned stating that “the SHRC is just a ruse to hoodwink the international community that the human rights of people are being respected”.
When the judiciary having enormous powers has failed people, any government controlled Commission that too in a conflict is unlikely to deliver. The organised victims struggle with the support of civil society can only bring the change. 


Now Stands Acquitted in Delhi Blasts 
Three Kashmiris Have Horrifying Stories to Relate 

The Informative Missive 	1 	   February 2017

On February 16, 2017, Additional Sessions Judge Reetesh Singh acquitted Mohammed Rafiq Shah and Mohammad Hussain Fazili of all the charges. However, the third accused Tariq Ahmed Dar, who worked with a private company, was sentenced to jail for the period already undergone since his arrest on November 21, 2005, for being a member of the banned LeT. The trio was arrested for triggering serial blasts in crowded market places of Sarojini Nagar, Kalkaji and Paharganj, rocking the city on October 29, 2005, two days before Diwali. The court pulled up Delhi Police for failure to prove any links of the accused with the 2005 serial blasts.
 The Informative Missive interviewed all the three released men at their respective residence. The trio has shocking details to share.  They shared how easily they were framed in false case, and nobody was there to listen to them. 
Mohammad Rafiq 
S/o: Mohammad Yasin Shah 
R/o: Shuhama, Alesteng, Ganderbal
 (
“Delhi police went to Kashmir University to whitewash my attendance.”
“Name any torture method which they have not applied on me, but they can’t succeed in forcing me to own what they want me to own.”
“Our case clearly shows that how Indian police implicate Kashmiris in false cases and left them to rot in jails for years till courts finds them innocent”
) (
Rafiq at his residence
)[image: ]Mohammad Rafiq son of Mohammad Yasin Shah of Shuhama, Alesteng, Ganderbal was studying in his class on October 29, 2005 when serial blasts rocked Delhi city killing 67 persons. The serial blasts had gone off in crowded market places of Sarojini Nagar, Kalkaji and Paharganj, two days before Diwali when the area was crowded with shoppers. Rafiq’s university attendance register clearly shows he was in university that day. Planting an explosion in DTC Bus by him in Govinderpori (Delhi) even can’t be imagined. Despite, the bases on which Rafiq was arrested and implicated by Delhi Police Special Cell were weak in nature and questionable, Rafiq has to spend almost twelve years in Tihar jail and has gone through various forms of torture. Rafiq feels frustrated as to why it took court 12 years to decide that he along with two other Kashmiris, arrested on same charges, were not involved in the blasts.  
   	“Twelve years is a long time doubly long when a person has to spend it in jail for none of his fault,” Rafiq told The Informative Missive researcher who visited his home to look through his case. 
Along with Mohammad Rafiq, Tariq Ahmed Dar and Mohammed Hussain Fazili were also arrested by Delhi Police Special Cell (DPSC). “Our case clearly shows that how Indian police implicate Kashmiris in false cases and left them to rot in jails for years till courts finds them innocent,” Rafiq said while explaining how easily Indian police can falsely implicate any Kashmiri in any terror related case.  
Rafiq has meticulously documented the Indian media coverage of his case.  One of the reportage of Hindustan Times dated October 12/2008 “IM executed 2005 Delhi blasts, claims ‘terror head’” had put the Delhi police in a spot of bother as the Mumbai police claimed the blasts were planned by Indian Mujahideens naming its mastermind as Mohammad Sadiq Sheikh alias Yaseer alias Imran (a nnon-Kashmiri). Sadiq’s interrogation report, a copy of which Hindustan Times claimed was in its possession, didn’t mention name of any of the Kashmiris arrested by the Delhi police. However, Delhi police through an anonymous officer informed the media that “IM was trying to discredit the probe and mislead police so that the accused do not get punished”.
Rafiq possesses another newspaper cutting of HT Metro dated December 10, 2005 wherein his sketch next to his photograph along with a horrible heading “This is the 29/10 bomber” described him a ‘dreaded terrorist’ was published.  Much before court could say anything he was declared a terrorist by the police and media.   
“One really fails to understand that even when a group owns the responsibility of the blasts still they (police) was interested in keeping us behind bars and avoid reaching to the truth. There seems a well-planned sinister design to target Kashmiris and implicate them in false cases,” Rafiq averred.
Rafiq was arrested at a time when he was at prime of his youth and at a crucial juncture of his career. Rafiq was perusing masters in Islamic Studies from Kashmir University. On November 21, 2005, Rafiq was arrested by DPSC along with JK-Special Task Force from his residence. He was straightaway taken to STF camp at Cargo, a notorious torture centre. Before he could understand the reason of his arrest he was told about his ‘involvement’ in Delhi blast. The allegation shocked him and he was speechless for a moment.  
“When Delhi police and STF told me to admit the responsibility of Delhi blasts I was shocked. When I refused to own something about which I had no idea, I was subjected to torture for two days with the aim to extract a false confession. Despite severe torture I remained adamant not to own the   responsibility,” Rafiq stated.
When they (police) fail to extract their scripted confession from Rafiq they intensify the torture. “I was harshly beaten for two consecutive days. Wooden roller was applied over my legs, my drenched body was given electric shocks, punches and kicks remained a continuous feature of the torture,” Rafiq said while relating the torture at STF Cargo camp. 
Then he was airlifted to Special Cell Headquarters at Lodhi Road in Delhi. There he was again tortured to own the responsibility of Delhi serial blasts and speak the same before the media. “For one-and-a-half-month I was taken to different torture centers by DPSL. They left no torture method untried on me to own the terror act. Beating, trampling my body with rollers, power currents, putting rats into my trousers and what not. Name any torture method which they have not applied on me, but they can’t succeed in forcing me to own what they want me to own,” Rafiq stated.
When the police failed to break him, he was shifted to Tihar jail and for 12 long years he was languishing there waiting for the day when he would be declared innocent. 
When the DPSC failed to gather anything incriminating against Rafiq, they went to Kashmir University to destroy Rafiq’s attendance record. “When I was in Tihar a team of Delhi police went to Kashmir University to whitewash my attendance to destroy the credible records of my presence in Kashmir that day. There they were told by the staff they will be provided the photocopy of my attendance but not the original registry which they were demanding,” Rafiq stated while sharing the details about how the Delhi police tried to destroy the records which can shatter their claim. 
“Finally the day came not only me the two other Kashmiris were also declared innocent by the court. One thing that still pains me was how long the court took to decide our case bereft of any evidence which can back police claim,”Rafiq laments.   
 “Now I stand acquitted by the court of all the charges leveled against me by the DPSC, however, there is nothing which can compensate my loss,” Rafiq said. 
Rafiq thinks that his association with Jamait-ul-Tulba (student wing of Jamaat-e-Islamia) was reason behind his arrest by DPSC. 
Earlier also he had served two jail terms of six years between 1995 to 1998 and 2001 to 2004 under Public Safety Act (PSA). First he was booked under PSA in 1996. In 1995 during a crackdown he was arrested by BSF 98 BN then stationed at Sheeraz Cemina in downtown Srinagar. In the cinema he was kept for a month during which he was regularly tortured. 
“BSF hung me upside down, beat me blindly, caning, wooden rollers were applied over my legs. Then at one point in the BSF custody I though they want to kill me,” Rafiq said while explaining the torture he was subjected to by the BSF in 1995.
At many occasions in the BSF custody different BSF officials mostly drunk came and beat him. “Not only the BSF personnel stationed at Sheeraz tortured me but the officials from different BSF camps also come and tortured me. Most of the officials who tortured me were in drunken state,” Rafiq stated.   
Then he was shifted to another infamous torture center PAPA II. “In PAPA II I was kept for two consecutive months and was regularly tortured. First they undress me, then hung me upside down, apply harsh canning over my ribs and legs, roller was applied over my legs and electric shocks were given to me,” Rafiq said while sharing his experiences he had in PAPA II.
Then he was shifted to PAPA I (also called GOGO Land) torture center. This was the place where he has some respite from the continuous torture. “I was interrogated there but not tortured and after two months I was shifted to Kot Bhalwal jail Jammu and after a month to Kathua jail. While in Kathua I was booked under PSA,” Rafiq stated.
After twenty months Rafiq’s PSA was quashed. 
Again in 2001 Rafiq while he was traveling in a local bus was stopped at Habak crossing in Srinagar by STF personnel. He was taken to Cargo torture centre. “I was detained in Cargo for 1 and ½ month during which various modes of tortures were applied over my body. It was almost repeat of the same torture I was subjected to earlier,” Rafiq said. 
Then he was shifted to STF camp Zakoora, Srinagar where from he was handed over to police station Zakoora after few days. Then after some days Zakoora police shifted him Central jail Srinagar. “For about 8 months I was kept in Srinagar central jail and then shifted to Kot Bhalwal where after a month I was framed in PSA,” Rafiq stated. 
In 2004 his PSA was quashed. 
Name: Muhammad Hussain Fazili- aged 42
R/O: Soura, Srinagar
On November 21st, 2005 at around 8 pm Hussain and his family members were watching news regarding the incident which had happened in Delhi some ten days ago. That night he had come back home from his friend’s wedding party. In the news they all came to know that a Kashmir namely Tariq Ahmad Dar has been arrested in the Delhi blast case before ten days. 
 (
Hussain 
at his residence
)[image: ]Hussain said, “My gallbladder had been removed recently because of some health issues. While watching the news we (me and my family) observed unusual noise of men and we thought that crackdown was going to take place, but it was the other thing. Some SOG personnel along with some ununiformed men entered inside our house and started searching. They all made us stand and started searching our entire house. While doing the same they asked my name and took me to the other room and started asking questions about me, my business and about Tariq Ahmad Dar also which I answered I don’t know him.” 
The whole environment changed and it was eerie calm the whole family observed that night. Within no time they told Hussain to go with them and assured his parents that they will release him soon. 
 (
hume pata hai tum log be-gunah ho, magar humare paas sau (100) raaste hain tumko galat saabit karne ke liye 
(we know you people are innocents but we have hundred (100) ways to prove you wrong)
agar judge ke saamne moon’h khola to bahar aake is se badtar torture hoga 
(there’s going to be more brutal torture, if we said anything before the judge).
)Hussain further stated, “When I questioned for my arrest but they said their senior officers have to investigate me. They took me to Cargo STF camp at Srinagar where I came to know that the ununiformed men were from Delhi Police Special Cell, Lodhi Colony,  Delhi.”
They started asking questions about Tariq Ahmad Dar which Hussain answered in negative as he didn’t know him. They started beating and torturing him. Soon another person namely Muhammad Rafiq Shah was also arrested. 
“After two days we were shifted to Delhi Police Special Cell, Lodhi Colony, New Delhi. My torture started right away.  I was made to lie down on a desk with hands tied behind my back and my head hanging backwards. Two people would sit on me, one on my legs and another on my stomach. One person used to pour soap filled water on my face and the person sitting on my belly that had the job of rubbing it. Soon they came to know I had undergone a surgery. And after that they used to put breads and water forcefully in our mouths. The torture was executed by ACP Sanjeev Kumar Yadav (now promoted to DCP rank) along with 4-5 inspectors,” Hussain said while explaining the initial torture he and others were subjected to. 
While detailing the torture further Hussain stated, “The same torture continued for two days in Cargo center. Here, we including me, were four (4) inmates namely Muhammad Rafiq Shah, Tariq Ahmad Dar and Ghulam Ahmad Khan, and the torture was done in so inhumane way that a human will start shivering. The torture was done one by one with different timing. They used to put our face into latrine pits and then put bread and water forcefully into our mouths. We were forced to drink urine many times. So many times we were paraded naked and rats were used on our naked bodies. Not only rats, but there used to be pigs also which were used to lick our bodies and faces. The interrogators were always mocking our religion, and on one day beard of Rafiq shah was cut off. One would exactly get the images of our torture that those Sipahis accompanying the interrogators used to weep whilst seeing us during the torture hours.  During the torture they used to tell us hume pata hai tum log be-gunah ho, magar humare paas sau (100) raaste hain tumko galat saabit karne ke liye (we know you people are innocents but we have hundred (100) ways to prove you wrong). This statement was making us psychologically so fragile day by day and we were asking our souls for what crime we are facing this brutality? What have we done? And there were so many questions alike revolving in our mind which would always make us emotionally and physically weak.”
While talking about threats of torture being delivered to them before being produced in the court Hussain said, “Whenever we had date in court the interrogators used to instruct us agar judge ke saamne moon’h khola to bahar aake is se badtar torture hoga (there’s going to be more brutal torture, if we said anything before the judge). The same torture in Lodhi Colony continued for more than 1.5 months from where we all were sent to Tihar Jail. And then my family came to know about my whereabouts. They came to know I am alive and in Tihar Jail.” 

While speaking on the maltreatment meted out to him in Tihar jail Hussain said, “In Tihar Jail, I was made to broom about 1.5 km long road and clean latrine pits with hands and foots. There used to be gang wars inside the jail. The notorious inmates used to strike other inmates with surgical blades.“ 
On 16th February, 2017 Hussain was released from Tihar Jail that is almost after 12 years “I was able to see my family. I had almost forgotten the ways to my home and the most surprising part is I had forgotten the face of my mother also who had become paralyzed on her one side and her memory had blurred. She had survived a couple of brain haemorrhages also, waiting for my return.,” Hussain said. 
On the day of his release, the judge was confused for what he spent those 12 years in Tihar Jail. “He (the judge) was confused to what crime should be associated with me so as to show I have spent 12 years in Jail for particular case,”Hussain said. 
Hussain have now returned home, but with so many health issues. “My brother was married in the same year when I was arrested and it was my turn for marriage after my elder brother, but I was arrested, arrested for 12 years for a fabricated case. How will I get those 12 years back? No compensation will return me my 12 years back. I lost my parents, I lost their love? No one can return that. No girl would marry me if I begin searching for my soul mate because I have spent 12 years in jail and no father would want to give his daughter to person like me,” Hussain stated while sharing the loss he had suffered due to his arrest. 
The tortures and Jail not only left him physically weak but those days and nights full of nightmares has given him many ugly indelible marks which can never be removed by anything. “Now I am not able to eat anything because I feel so ugly because my mouth was many times put into latrine pits. Food reminds me of those nightmares and I always ignore eating,” Hussain concludes. 
Name: Tariq Ahmad Dar
Parentage:  Haji Ghulam Qadir Dar
Residence: Solina Bala, Srinagar
Tariq Ahmad Dar was working successfully as a sales executive for a Multinational company (MNC), Johnson’s & Johnson’s, since May 1997 after cracking 4 to 5 concept presenting exams and competitions for different MNCs in India. He was a star performer in the company where he had earned 5 gold medals, 3 silver medals and 32 certificates of merit during his 8 years of service. He was known to his colleagues as a pious and religious man who would pray regularly and never speaks foul language. His ordeal started when he was abducted by unknown personnel on 10th November 2005 on Jammu –Srinagar National Highway near Galandar (Pampore) when he was returning from his business in Anantnag. Talking about his arrest and torture, Tariq says:
“On 10th November 2005, I was returning from my official work in Anantnag. On the way I picked up my friend in my car who happened to be an advocate. When I reached Galandar near Pampore on Jammu-Srinagar National Highway, I saw that I was being followed by several vehicles. A person inside one of these vehicles pointed to me that my tyre was bursted. I stopped, came down of the car to check the tyre but the people came running down from their vehicles, pointed guns at me, bundled me into my own car and whisked me away, blindfolded.”
“Taking him to be a layman, whom I had just given lift from the roadside, my friend was thrown out of the car. I was taken to an unknown place, detained there overnight and kept blindfolded all the time. I could not make out to which agency my detainers belonged to as they were in civvies but from their language, I could make out that these people were not Kashmiri. My torture started from that place only,” 
While explaining the torture Tariq was subjected to he said, “I was stripped naked, beaten for the whole night and electrocuted (Says that I cannot tell you everything that they did to me).  After this torture, my body was swollen and bleeding profusely. In the meantime, my friend had gone to the police station Pampore and registered an FIR about my kidnapping by unknown people”. 
Next morning Tariq was bundled into a vehicle, tied to the floor of the vehicle and taken on an uneven road. At this point in time, Tariq thought that he was going to be killed and counted as another mysterious death in the valley and became mentally prepared for his last journey. 
He further stated, “But when the vehicle stopped I saw that a small plane was waiting there and immediately thought that there was a bigger plan for which I was arrested. I was taken to Delhi Police Special Cell Lodhi Colony, New Delhi. In that place I had to go through the worst kind of torture”. 
While speaking on the torture Tariq was subjected to in Delhi he stated, “The torture started with caning. I was suspended upside down, my legs were stretched beyond 180o, and electric shocks were given in all possible ways. The most difficult torture I had to go through was waterboarding in which my hands and legs were tied to the bench and 1-2 people sat on my stomach and water was poured in through my nostrils. This gives a person the feeling of drowning. This would continue until I was unconscious. While going through waterboarding, I felt that the rest of the methods of torture used on me were far easier”. 
 (
“
But when the vehicle stopped I saw that a small plane was waiting there and immediately thought that there was a bigger plan for which I was arrested
”
.
“
The most difficult torture I had to go through was waterboarding in which my hands and legs were tied to the bench and 1-2 people sat on my stomach and water was poured in through my nostrils
”
.
)During that night he was kept tied with iron rods and chains. The rod from stomach to neck was smaller in length due to which Tariq’s neck was always bent forwards and he was unable to stretch it. He said, to add to his misery he was made to stand away from the wall so that he could not lean on it and at every time 3 people (sentries) would stand guard to make sure that he doesn’t sleep. 
Even after this torture when they could not make him confess to the charges that they wanted to frame him in, Tariq further stated, “New techniques of torture were introduced. Rats were put inside my trousers and it was tied on both ends. Hair was plucked out from my body. I was forced to drink urine, faeces were rubbed on my body and piglets were rubbed with my body. All this was done to torture me psychologically by hurting my religious sentiments. Even Islam was verbally abused in front of me to weaken me psychologically.”
While speaking on prolonging his detention Tariq said, “As the maximum police custody of a person can be for 14 days only, a new FIR with new charges was registered against me after every 15 days so that my police custody can be extended. My ordeal at Lodhi Colony, Delhi Police Special Cell continued for 55 days during which I was tortured continuously. During this time the police officer incharge of the Lodhi Colony, Delhi Police Special Cell was ACP Sanjeev Kumar Yadav who has now been promoted to the rank of DCP.” 
Even after all the torture when they could not get any confession from Tariq, he was told that they are going to get information directly by “testing” his brain after which he was taken to Bangalore and a Narco-analysis test was done on him. 
“The recording of this Narco-analysis was telecast on Star news before being presented as a proof in front of the Judge. For the 55 days of my police custody I had no defence council. After 55 days in police custody, I was finally transferred to Tihar Jail on the judicial custody where I was kept in High Security ward for all the 12 years of my detention. After I was transferred to Tihar Jail, SAR Geelani came to meet me in the jail. He runs an organization by the name of “Forum for the Release of Political Prisoners” through which he provided me a defence council, the fees for which was paid by my family,” Tariq said while detailing his ordeal.
A habeas corpus petition was filed by Mian Abdul Qayoom in Jammu & Kashmir high court just after Tariq’s arrest. Tariq was aquitted of all charges under which he was arrested and was finally released from Tihar jail in February 2017.
Although Tariq lost 12 years of his life proving his innocence, he still comes across as a very positive man. More than the miseries that he himself had to go through, Tariq feels bad for the difficulties his family particularly his wife and daughter, who was born three months after his arrest, had to face during this time. His daughter started campaigning for his release when she was just one-and-half years-old and continued till his release which may have made her more mature than her age.

Not First Time, Police bans JKCCS event to commemorate Kunan Poshpora anniversary

Feb 23: Further shrinking the human rights space in Kashmir police banned the event to commemorate the 26th anniversary of the Kunan Poshpora gang rape and torture by the army men. It was not for the first time the police had prevented JKCCS programme, in past there were examples where government and police clampdown on JKCCS public activities.
 (
Govt. order disallowing
Kashmiri Women’s Resistance Day
)[image: ]The Support Group for Justice for Kunan Poshpora had sought permission from Deputy Commissioner, Srinagar to hold the event at a local hotel, Lala Rukh.
On February 23, a member of the Support Group was telephonically informed by police official to collect the permission order from the office of the Deputy Commissioner, Srinagar. However, on reaching there, they were informed that the permission has been denied on the basis of SSP Srinagar’s apprehension that there is threat of law and order problem when the issue of Kunan Poshpora is raised during the event.
The Support Group said denial to hold the event is symptomatic of the State’s attempts to completely clampdown on events relating to human rights violations, particularly sexual violence.
It said in the scheduled event, the survivors of Kunan Poshpora mass rape and members of the Support Group were to apprise the participants about the legal proceedings of the case in the Supreme Court and remember the seven victims, who have passed away.
By denying permission for the event the State has put on display its repressive behaviour of regulating public spaces and curbing any conversation on critical human rights issues faced by the people of Jammu and Kashmir.
Pertinent to mention here, last year on April 16 JKCCS office was put under strict police sieged for a day to prevent Handwara girl’s mother to speak to media about the molestation of her daughter. The lockdown was so tight that nobody was allowed in to talk to the girl’s mother. 
Also on July 09, 2014, police clampdown on JKCCS function preventing internationally acclaimed academician and eminent historian Professor Mridu Rai, then Head of the History Department in Presidency University, Kolkata, from delivering a lecture in Kashmir. 
It appears that the government gets nervous over highlighting the human rights issues thus banning the human rights programme. The successive governments in Kashmir are following the same policy when it comes to the issues of human rights violations. This intransigent attitude of the governments only exposes its frequent claims of securing human rights of Kashmiri people.  Instead of improving its human rights records on the ground the government and police continues with the policy of banning human rights related events particularly the ones conducted by the JKCCS. 

Circumstantial Evidence Hints at Army Involvement in Youth’s Killing

On September 14, 2016, twenty-four-year-old, Manzoor Ahmad Lone’s corpse was found a day after his disappearance. The body had visible torture marks clearly depicting the youth was tortured to death. Manzoor’s family has inkling that army had tortured him to death as the circumstances and the place where from his body was found suggested that.   
On September 13, Manzoor, 24, a farmer disappeared after the Idd prayers. As the agitation was going on since the killing of Burhan Wani on July 8, people after offering Idd prayers assembled to protest outside the local Iddgah at Pazalpora, Baramulla. As the time passes, the gathering started swelling up and the sloganeering reaches high decibels. The protest was peaceful and stationary. Just some hundred meters away was a 22 RR military installation.     
Suddenly, a huge army contingent came out of the camp to chase away the protestors. Villagers say the army didn’t fire bullets but used bamboo rods to disperse the people. The people ran into different direction to evade the army. Manzoor was also part of the protest. Like hundreds of persons Manzoor also fled from the scene.   
Then the army entered into the Pazalpora village and damaged window panes of many houses. For time being army stayed in the village to make sure that people should not re-assemble. 
“After the army left all the persons managed to reach their home but not Manzoor. We waited for his return till 4:00 pm thinking he might have gone to some friends place. When he didn’t returned back as the evening started approaching we went out to find him. The search went unsuccessful,” Manzoor’s father Naseer stated while talking to The Informative Missive researcher who had visited the victim’s house on February 10.  
Next day morning, at 8:00 am, Manzoor family approached police post Bomai (Sopore) for reporting the disappearance. “Police told us it may take time to locate him as the mobile service was suspended in view of the Kashmir uprising. However, they assured us they will do everything to find him out,” Naseer said.
Couple of hours later, at 10:15 am, few locals spotted Manzoor’s dead body just few meters away from 22 RR camp. “Manzoor’s body was found under a big rock and a broken wooden rod was lying next to it. The rod had turned red with his blood. His right eye brow was badly damaged. His right arm had also torture marks. There were two bruised spots around his kidney areas seem like his kidneys were also damaged by the torture,” the dejected father said while explaining the torture his son was subjected to.     
The family did not know who picked and killed the victim.  However, it believes that the circumstances in which Manzoor disappeared points towards the army’s involvement. 
“We were not sure who picked him and tortured him to death. Nevertheless, we have reasons to believe that army might have been involved in his killing. He disappeared when army was chasing away the protestors and later his body was found just near the army camp, whose men stormed the village to disband the protestors,” Naseer stated while relating the doubts he has on the army.  
According to Naseer army’s name figured in the FIR file by the police. “We can’t say for sure how the police will conduct the investigation but we can hope only that the investigation would be conducted in impartial manner to unmask the killers,” Naseer hopes. 
The treatment of Naseer, a cancer patient, has been adversely affected after his son’s killing. Manzoor had to left his studies half-way to improve his family financial conditions. His killing has further worsened his family’s economic conditions.  
“I have no idea how I follow my must needed treatment. I don’t know if something happens to me who will look after my family,” the dejected Manzoor stated. 
The family has filed an application in Deputy Commissioner’s office Baramulla for ex-gratia relief. “We feel compelled to file a relief case hoping, if sanctioned, could mitigate our sufferings to some extent,”Manzoor concluded.

Pellet victim of 2016 uprising dies in Kulgam
Cause not known yet, say doctors; Natural death, say police

Feb 21: A twenty-year-old youth of South Kashmir’s Kulgam district who had sustained multiple pellet injuries during last year’s uprising died February 20 morning at a local orphanage, the ambulance of which he used to drive. While doctors said they could not establish the cause of death, police maintained that initial investigations reveal he died of “natural causes.”
Wasim Ahmad Thokur S/O Haji Mushtaq Ahmad Thokur of Schuch village of Kulgam, according to family and eyewitnesses, was found dead in the room of Yateem Foundation in Chawlagam village in the morning.
According to the volunteers of the Yateem Foundation, “Wasim used to ferry patients as well as those who sustained injuries during summer uprising in ambulance to Srinagar hospitals and on Monday he was supposed to carry similar patients. We called him on phone multiple times to wake him up but he did not respond. He had bolted the door from inside so we knocked at it, but again could not get any response. Finally we broke through the window only to find him dead.”
They said that though they rushed him to district hospital Kulgam, but he was declared brought dead by the doctors.
Speaking to media, Medical Superintendent District Hospital Kulgam, Dr Roshan Din Kasana, said that the cause of his death could not be ascertained yet.
“Wasim was brought dead to the hospital and later the attendants took him along. Neither family nor police sought postmortem of the body. Even though the family narrated the history of he having sustained multiple pellets in chest in September last year, but the cause of death could not be established,” said the MS.
He, however, said that death due to cardiac arrest cannot be overruled.
Police, on the other hand, maintained that even though they have launched investigations but it seemed to be a natural death.
“Even though we are carrying proceedings under 174 CrPC but initial reports suggest it to be a natural death,” said Superintendent of Police (SP) Kulgam, Sridhar Patel.
The family and locals, however, say that the death was triggered by pellet injuries the victim had sustained in September last year.
“Wasim had sustained multiple pellet injuries fired by government forces in September last year during Mirhama chalo march. He was first treated at PHC Mohamadpora where from he was shifted to SMHS Srinagar,” family said.
“Doctors at the SMHS had told him that a few pellets remained embedded in lungs but it won’t cause any problem if he avoids physical exertion,” family said.
They added that he had around 300 pellets, some of which he had got removed locally.
“Of late he was complaining of chest pain after which we took him to district hospital Anantnag where doctors after carrying investigations advised him to take proper treatment,” said the family.
They said that before being hit by pellets Wasim was hale and hearty and had no previous history of cardiac problem.
Thousands of people participated in his funeral prayers at his native village amid pro-freedom slogans after which he was laid to rest.

No Headway in Khrew Lecturer’s Killing Probes

Broken windowpanes shielded with ply boards and tin-sheets, palpable fear what one can still witness in Shar-e-Shali, Khrew area of Pulwama district where a lecturer Shabir Ahmad Mangoo, 30, was beaten to death by the army on the intervening night of August 17/18 last year when peoples’ uprising was at its peak. People described that night most horrible in the recent history of Khrew when armed forces went berserk beating people and ransacking houses. The village of Shar-e-Shali of Khrew lies some 20 km north-east of Srinagar. It is divided into two parts, Shar A and Shar B. 
The killing of English lecturer Shabir Ahmad forced the army and government to order separate probes into the incident unlike most of the 2016 killings. The killing was one of the high-profile killings of 2016 which attracted humongous attention both public and political. Shabir’s killing was front-page news in almost all the newspapers of Kashmir.
Shabir was killed at a time when the area was calm and there was no protest going on.  
 (
“The soldiers besides guns were armed with knives, iron rods and axes as in they had come to eliminate the whole village population.”
“get two bullets for pelting a stone”
)Pertinently, to placate the peoples’ anger army regretted the killing and claimed a probe into the death. The state government also ordered a separate probe. Now six months gone by there was no clue of what happened to the probes. Mostly probes in Kashmir were only ordered to pacify the public anger, as the previous probes in human rights violations cases suggests. 
People in the village strongly believes that night under a sinister plan army and STF came to inflict collective punishment on the villagers as during the day there was a mild stone pelting incident in the area. In response to the stone pelting army had threatened people they will “get two bullets for pelting a stone”. The army vehicle used for the announcement was attacked by some local boys in which few army personnel suffered minor injuries. It was then the army threatened of revenge. Most of the people see the army’s announcement to provoke the youth. 
	This month, to ascertain the status of the enquiries ordered by the government and army a researcher of The Informative Missive visited Shabir’s family. On reaching there, the researcher found Shabir’s house locked as the entire family has gone somewhere. However, the researcher managed to talk to a cousin of Shabir, Rafiq Ahmad, who lives adjacent to Shabir’s house.  
Rafiq said, “Nobody has any idea what happened to probes ordered separately by government and army. There seems no seriousness from the government to probe the incident as it knew the people responsible were men in uniform.” 
He further stated, “Nobody was called to depose before any investigation team that suggests the probe was only to deflate the public anger and not to indict the forces responsible for killing and beating people”.
Nobody shows any hope in government appointed enquiries. 
	While stating what happened that night Rafiq said, “On that fateful night at around 9:30 pm army and STF before barging into the village cut off the power supply of the entire village. Shortly, an announcement from a local Masjid was made by the army that it was coming. The soldiers besides guns were armed with knives, iron rods and axes as in they had come to eliminate the whole village population.”
	Before people could understand anything, the army and STF forced their entry inside the village; over 200 houses were ransacked. As many as over hundred persons were beaten by the army. The forces looted valuables like gold and saffron worth lakhs of rupees. 
“At first Shabir and his brothers were beaten at their house. Shabir was busy reading something when at least 40 army personnel entered in. When he was dragged by the forces his sister tried to came in the way. She was pulled by her hairs and pushed to the corner,” Rafiq said while explaining the army’s raid. 
	Rafiq identified the soldiers were from 50 Rashitriya Rifles coming from three different army camps at Khonmoh Camp, Sher-e-Shali and Pampore. Around hundred villagers were beaten by the forces. 	Around sixty persons of them were taken to the main chowk (crossing) including Shabir. The army told these men that they will be arrested and detained under the PSA (Public Safety Act). Shabir was frightened as he got worried about losing his job. 
“It was in the chowk army accused Shabir of teaching new and innovative ways of stone pelting and protesting. Shabir was pursuing his Phd and was an English lecturer. He was able to speak fluent English and the army was continuously accusing him of teaching the boys all these new ways of protesting,” stated Rafiq.  
Thereafter, over sixty persons were pushed into the army vehicles and taken to three different camps. “Shabir was not able to stand. He has injuries all over his body presumable his both legs were fractured. He was crying for water. On reaching the Pampore camp Shabir’s conditions deteriorates. Army took him to Sub District hospital, Pampore where doctors declared him “dead-on-arrival,” Rafiq stated. 
Not only Shabir his two brothers Zahoor Ahmad and Javaid Ahmad were ruthlessly beaten that night. Both the brothers had undergone surgeries. Zahoor’s both arms were broken while Javiad’s one arm was fractured.  
Shabir had married only about three years ago, was father to a 15-month-old child, and was determined to crack the National Eligibility Test (NET).
The elders speak of him as the “crown of the village”, the role model for the rest of its youth and the hope of a better life for Shar-i-Shali. The raid changed all that. “Tomorrow, when his child learns what the Army did to his father, how will he react to it,” said a local resident.
A case under sections 307 (attempt to Murder), 302 (murder), 427 (mischief causing damage to property) and 120-B (Criminal Conspiracy) of the Ranbir Penal Code (RPC) has been registered against unknown secuirty personnel in connection with the incident at Khrew last night in which one Shabir Ahmad Monga was killed and 18 others were injured. 
Shabir’s family had been perusing a case in High Court at Srinagar. 

Khazir Mohammad Naikoo’s Family Survives Massacre Plan
Two of Its Members Murdered 

 (
“Over a dozen of the gunmen broke open the door. The family members were scattered in different rooms. As they (gunmen) stepped in they showered bullets in all directions till they
 almost exhausted their bullets.
”
“They (gunmen) actually came to wipe off my entire family.”
)Aged around seventy-five-years, Khazir Mohammad Naikoo from Seelu, Sopore district Baramulla was spotted by a JKCCS lawyer at State Human Rights Commission (SHRC) office. She saw him pleading with moist eyes before the judge for justice in his son’s and nephew’s killing case. When he was briefly interviewed by the lawyer at SHRC, he shared shocking details of how his family members were butchered by the Special Task Forces (STF) and Ikhwanis.  
The lawyer took him to the JKCCS office where he shared his ordeal before The Informative Missive.  The old-man sound firm and at the same time cautious in his fight for justice. He saw his son and nephew were showered with bullets in front of his eyes by Ikhwanis accompanied by STF.    
“They (gunmen) actually came to wipe off my entire family. I don’t understand what made them to change their plans. I saw my young son and nephew felling on the ground after being pumped with bullets,” stated Khazir Mohammad.    
On June 20, 2014, STF and Ikhwanis came in a three vehicles including two police Sumos. They were armed with automatic weapons with their faces covered with the masks. The family heard a disturbing noise. It was dark outside as the clock shows 8:45 pm. Khazir counted, the gunmen were 30 in number. His house was cordoned off. Some of his family members peeped through a widow finding gunmen encircling the house.  
“We thought it was the end. We got a feeling that the gunmen had come to massacre us. Everything looks well-planned,” Khazir Mohammad stated as his voice reaches high decibel with anger, which he failed to control. 
The horrible scenes of that night were quite fresh in his eyes. Before he could further relate the story he apologies to this researcher for being loud. “Over a dozen of the gunmen broke open the door. The family members were scattered in different rooms. As they (gunmen) stepped in they showered bullets in all directions till they almost exhausted their bullets,” Khazir Mohammad averred. 
As the sound of bullet stops, which kills our cries for help, Khazir Mohammad saw his son Nazir Ahmad and nephew Shabir Ahmad flat on the ground. The floor was wet with their blood. The scene was horrible. “I saw my son and nephew dead. As many as 40 bullets were fired on Nazir and Shabir has 4 bullets holes on his body,” the old man stated with tearful eyes which he struggles to control.   
While the attackers were leaving the house, head of one of them was hit by a door and his mask dropped from his face. Khazir identified him. He was Mehraj-ud-Din, Saleema’s brother a notorious Ikhwani. Saleema, Khazir’s brother’s wife. Khazir tried to snatch his rifles but was only able to remove its magazine. 
The killings connect with a land fraud case of year 2011. Khazir’s younger brother Ghulam Nabi fell in a love with a woman Saleema and married to her in 2002. Saleema’s has three brothers all Ikhwanis. Khazir Mohammad and his two brothers Ghulam Nabi and Mohammad Maqbool were living a peaceful and happy life. Everything was fine in the family.   
In 2011, the situation took an ugly turn, Ghulam Nabi and Saleema along with her brothers and some other persons (mostly Ikhwanis) were seen on land belongs to Naikoo family. The entire property was unshared and was jointly used by Khazir and his two brothers. Saleema’s cousin Saif Khan, a revenue official fraudulently transferred land measuring 5 kanals on Ghulam Nabi’s name and 3 kanals on Saleema’s name. When Saleema’s brothers and their men, who were planning a construction on a piece of land transferred to Saleema, was objected by Mohammad Maqbool. Ghulam Nabi told his men to beat him. Saleema’s brothers beat him ruthlessly. 
When Khazir’s son Manzoor Ahmad Naikoo came to the rescue of his uncle he too was beaten badly. Then Maqbool’s cousin’s son Abdul Rashid tried to save them but he took was pounced on and beaten.  Then another relative Tajamul Rasheed son of Abdul Rashid tried to intervene he was hit with a rod on his head. Tajamul got seriously injured and shifted to SKIMS hospital at Srinagar. 
Khazir Mohammad filed FIR No. 159/11 U/S 307 in police station Sopore mentioning infight over family property. The SHO who filed the FIR was transferred and the SHO who replaced him charge-sheeted only four people namely, Ghulam Nabi Naikoo, Imitiyaz Ahmad Khan, Mehraj-ud-Din Khan and Abid Khan. Khazir Mohammad accused the SHO of being corrupt as he chargesheeted only four persons. Pertinently, Saif Khan, a revenue official, who fraudulently transferred the land didn’t figure in the chargesheet. After thirteen days the four people in the challan were released on bail. A case was going on in Baramulla Sessions Court filed by Khazir Mohammad in land fraud and attack on his relatives. 
On June 16, 2014, after a court hearing Ayub Khan, Mehraj-ud-Din’s associate, and his men threatened Shabir Ahmad Naikoo that on next hearing, “nobody from you would be alive”. Just only after four days the family was attacked and two of its men were killed.  
Khazir Mohammad’s experiences with police were horrible. He was frustrated, harassed and abused by different high rank police officials.
Next day, of the killings, Khazir went to Dy SP, Sopore office and handed over the magazine to him. Thereafter, Mehraj-un-Din was arrested. Then SP Qayoom called a press conference wherein he announced that “police has arrested killers of two civilians in less than 24 hours”. Only after fourteen days Mehraj-ud-Din was released and police shifted the blame on militants to save the actual perpetrators.
When Khazir Mohammad met then SHO Rafiqi to file FIR, he was hurled with abuses. Then he met then SP Qayoom who told him “do whatever you want I did the encounter of your relatives”. He was shocked over the SP’s behavior. He did not believe himself, as it was the same SP who addressed media wherein he claimed arrest of a killer. 
Not losing hope Khazir Mohammad then met DIG Ghulam Hassan Bhat, who helps him in filing FIR.  Police filed FIR 95/2014 U/S 302, 307 RPC and 7/27 Arms Act and named eleven persons in it.
The accused were identified by Khazir Mohammad as Ghulam Nabi Naikoo and his wife Saleema, Ayoub Khan, Ishfaq Khan, Raja Khan, Imitiyaz Khan, Yousuf Khan, Abid Khan, Ahsan Khan, Rehmatullah Khan, Saif Khan.  All the names figured in the FIR filed by Khazir Mohammad in police station Sopore. Three of the accused were Ikhwanis. 
Meanwhile, SHO Rafiqi was replaced by SHO Masarat. When Khazir Mohammad went to meet the SHO Rafiqi with a copy of FIR. The SHO “hurled the FIR in air and told the old man go and get the militants who killed your son and nephew.  
Then Khazir went back to meet DIG Ghulam Hassan but he was transferred. Then he went to meet then Inspector General of Police (IGP) Abdul Gani Mir and relate everything to him. The IGP called SP Qayoom and reprimanded him on phone. The IGP asked him to take action against the culprits. However, nothing happens. 
In 2015, to continue his fight, Khazir Mohammad filed a writ petition before High Court. However, the High Court transferred the petition to Baramulla Sessions court.  
Only once in 2016, the Baramulla Sessions Court summoned Mehraj-ud-Din, one of the culprit. With the filing of the case in the Court, army stationed at Seelu Camp Sopore, just some distance away from Khazir’s house, started pressurizing Khazir’s family. An Army Major (name not know) started intimidating Khazir and his family to withdraw the petition. Once he was also called and threatened by SHO Masarat to withdraw the case. 
In the beginning of year 2016, Manzoor Ahmad, Khazir’s son, had a narrow escape. When he was busy at his Shop in Seelu his brother Fayaz Ahmad, whose shop is next to his brother’s shop, saw a gunman aiming his gun at Manzoor. When Fayaz raised an alarm, the car rushed to the nearby Seelu army camp. 
Now the police and army harassment has literally stop after the last year mass agitation that trigged after the killing of Burhan Wani on July 8. 
While the case is going on in the Court Khazir feels highly vulnerable. The police and army’s involvement in the case poses serious threat to Khazir’s family. “We feel insecure. Don’t know what to do. The perpetrators are deeply connected with the police and army, and can go to any extent to pressure me and my family,” Khazir concludes.  

Begum Jan’s Struggle Inspiring

 (
 Begum
 Jan
)[image: ]A middle-aged woman Begum Jan’s sets an example for victims of state violence. Her story is a combination of courage, steadfastness and resolve. She lost her husband and two brothers, one of whom was killed in an encounter and another disappeared by army. Now she is facing harassment at the hands of the army informer who wants her to end her support to the family of her disappeared brother who was taken away in 2015 by a Territorial Army personnel.  
Her story might have remained hidden if she had not travelled to Srinagar to highlight her brother’s disappearance. In fact her brother’s disappearance in 2015 provides her an opportunity to speak out to The Informative Missive what she had faced for last two-decades-and-half.  
A typical village woman speaking Pahari language coming from Kupwara’s Dardpora village, a village describes as “Village of Widows” having over 100 widows. She too was a widow. She turned window at a very young age. She was only twenty-two-years-old when she lost her husband leaving two small kids to taken care for.  
In 1992 her husband Shams-ud-Din, a militant, was killed in an encounter with the army in Dhumari Gali, Chowkibal, Kupwara. However, his death has been confirmed but not his whereabouts. Jana neither receives the corpse of her husband not knows where his grave is located. The worst she fears whether he was really buried somewhere. Technically, her husband’s case qualifies as a case of disappearance.   
“It wasn’t easy then to approach the army and demand the body. One could not even imagine what the situation was then. It was horrible if one want to put it in words,” Begum Jan said. 
With the inception of armed insurgency in 1989 Kupwara was literally turned into military concentration camp, as the district has proximity with the LOC. People living there were on army’s mercy. The army’s presence was there like a thick blanket.  Every movement of the people were properly monitored. 
In 1992 Begum had two children. Her one son Parvez Ahmad was only twenty-days-old and Maam Din five-years-old when they lost their father. Maam Din has some faint image of his father while Parvez had no idea how his father looks like.
	Before she could reconcile with the fate only a later in 1993 his brother Sher Wali Khatana, also a militant, lost his life fighting army.
 	“The tears were yet to dry. I received another shock. This time my brother was killed in encounter with the army,” Begum said. 
	Begum never lost her hope. She keeps fighting her fate. She made sure that at least her kids get some education.  “If I am not educated but I know the value of education. I strived hard and ensure education of my children to some level,” Jana stated.  
The façade that the situation has improved in Kupwara was tore apart by triple Kupwara disappearances on November 15, 2015. Three men disappeared. One of them Ghulam Jeelani was Jana’s brother. The three were taken away by a Territorial Army personnel on the pretext of providing them jobs. The TA personnel was identified as Manzoor Khawaja who was detained by police for few days to deflate the public pressure. He was later released and is moving freely. Manzoor’s involvement in the disappearance was also endorsed by the police.  
Begum Jan stands tall amid threats from the army. Army wants to see an end to the campaign launched by the families of the disappeared families. Army has pinpointed Jana Begum as she was instrumental in keeping the fight of searching the trio alive. 
She doesn’t want that the family of her brother Ghulam Jeelani suffer. “It was not a secret that army wants to silence us. They offer us money through their informers, and when it failed to serve their interest, they came up with direct and indirect threats,” Begum stated.
Khursheed, Begum Jan’s nephew, was appointed by the army to disengage the families from striving for whereabouts of the disappeared trio. 
Ghulam Jeelani’s son and son-in-law Javaid Gorsi both were threatened by the army informers. In September 2016, army’s Commanding Officer (CO) summoned Begam Jan (wife of Ghulam Jeelani) to the camp. Pertinently, wife and sister of Ghulam Jeelani share the common name.  The officer told her that the army knows it were Jeelani’s sister Jana Begum who took interest in the case not her. The CO told Jeelani’s wife that “army believes in resolving the issues by bullets not by persuasions”. The CO further told her to withdraw the case for the betterment. The CO also told her to absolve the army in the court. 
“As long as I am breathing I will continue my fight. I will not rest till I know my brother’s whereabouts,” Begum expressed.
She said Ghulam Jeelani’s family was in dire straits since his disappearance. Jana apart from taking care of his family frequently visited Jeelani’s children. Jeelani has seven kids out of whom two are visually impaired. 
	Army has succeeded in appropriating the wife of Ali Mohammad Sheikh, who also disappeared with Ghulam Jeelani but Begum Jan has decided to carry forward her struggle. 
“If you see Jeelani’s family needs support and I am there to support it. Be it verbal or physical I am there for them,” Begum stated. 
She further stated while referring to her husband’s disappearance, “The pain is still deep inside my heart. They (army) killed my husband and deny his body to me. He was a militant but after killing him they should have to give me his body.”
“Now they have disappeared my brother and want us not to agitate. If nobody fights I will alone fight this battle. I will never stop searching my brother till I am alive,” Begum resolves.

Ishfaq Killed by Troops, Not Militants, Says His Family

The family members of Reshi, the civilian who was killed during the fierce encounter between militants and government forces on February 12, have strongly contested the official claim that Ishfaq was killed when militants opened fire on him.
Instead, the family members claim that Ishfaq along with his brother Mohammad Shafi Reshi, both co-owners of the house where the militants had taken shelter during the encounter, were taken into custody by personnel of army and police special operations group (SOG) after the gun battle started between government troops and the militants.
“The forces laid a cordon in our village Nagbal at about 10pm on February 11,” said a visibly-shocked Shafi, who was released by the forces later in pre-dawn hours of February 12. “All of our family members left the house at about 11:45 pm and were later goaded by the forces to the house of our neighbour Bashir Sheikh. All along this while we heard firing (of guns). Sometimes the firing would be intense, sometimes intermittent. We were about 70 people huddled in a room,” he said.
Later, Shafi said, the men of SOG and army came back and picked him up along with his brother Ishfaq.
“I saw my brother Ishfaq when he was picked up by the forces. On the way to our house (where the militants were hiding), we were kicked and abused. Then we were separated,” he said. “I saw him the last time near Nagbal Masjid. The army and SOG men were with him. The next day, I saw his body.”
Shafi said he heard intense firing at about 1:00 am in the night. “I believe Ishfaq was killed at that very time,” he said.
Shafi said after the heavy exchange of fire at 1:00 am, the government forces treated him well and did not trouble him much.
“Then they blasted our house. They fixed two IEDs to our house, blasted it, and turned it into a heap of rubble,” he recalled.
“The next day, the forces brought a bulldozer to clean the rubble and took out four bodies. The body of my brother was kept at Wanpoh police station. They did not ask us to identify him. They knew he was my brother. His face was clean and there was not much dust on his body,” Shafi said.
In the aftermath of the encounter in the pre-dawn hours, Shafi said, army and SOG men released him but not before asking him to announce on loudspeaker that his brother was killed by the militants hiding in their house.
“How could I have announced that my brother was killed by militants when I knew the truth,” Shafi told to media.
A 25-year-old local, who wished to remain anonymous, said that he was sent by the army inside the house eight times. “They wanted me to locate the militants. But I could not find anybody,” the boy said with fear writ large on his face. He said that he will not divulge further details on how he was used as a human shield by the troops.
The army and police on March 12 said that Ishfaq was killed by the militants and that he along with other civilians was trapped inside the house. The police said that when the forces started their operation, the civilians managed to leave and in the meantime Ishfaq was hit by militant fire and was killed.
	Eight people, including four militants, two civilians, and two army men died in the encounter in Nagbal on Sunday. In the public protests that took place after the encounter, at least 20 people sustained injuries and one person was killed when police and CRPF opened fire on people.
“They took away both my sons,” Ishfaq’s father Abdul Majid Reshi said, “but they returned to me the dead body of my son at 2pm on Sunday.”
“I saw Ishfaq when the forces picked him up. He died under their custody,” Abdul Majid said.
Ishfaq’s maternal uncle, Ghulam Hassan Sheikh, said that Ishfaq was a good student and was working as a contractual employee with the government’s water department.
“He had done an ITI diploma. He was married and had an 18-month-old daughter. His wife is a widow now,” Sheikh said. “This loss is irreparable. The house will come back, the routine of life will come back, but who will bring Ishfaq back?”

Family Learnt of Son’s Killing on Facebook

Feb 13: When twenty-three-year-old Mushtaq Ahmad Itoo heard of the killing of four militants in Frisal village of Nagbal, he rushed to the village along with two local boys to participate in the funeral prayers of the slain militants. Some two hours later, his family received news that Mushtaq was dead.
“He had lunch at noon. He left home on his two-wheeler without telling anyone where he was going. Two and a half hours later we heard the news of his death through social media,” said one of his relatives. “We initially refused to believe it, but after pictures of his dead body appeared on Facebook, we had to accept the reality.”
The relative said that it was only after Mushtaq was lowered in the grave that the family came to know he had gone to attend the funeral of the militants.
Mushtaq was hit by a bullet near his abdomen when government troops opened fire on the gathering at the encounter site. He was taken to district hospital Anantnag where doctors declared him brought dead.
A local boy who accompanied Mushtaq to Nagbal said that they reached the encounter site at about 2 pm, hours after the encounter had ended.
	“As soon as we reached near the encounter site we came to know that the bodies of the militants were in possession of the police and that they will be handed over to the families at 5pm. On learning about this, Mushtaq told us that we will leave only after offering jinaza to the slain militants,” the boy said.
	The three boys were yet to decide to which village they should go first and how they could attend funeral prayers of all the militants, when the government forces came in their vehicles from the direction of the village market.
“On seeing the vehicles with troops who were firing warning shots and bursting teargas shells, people who had gathered near the spot started running for safety. When he heard the gunshots, Mushtaq told me that he will park his motorcycle at some safe place. While he was parking his motorcycle behind a stack of grass, the forces’ vehicles had reached close and they fired directly at him,” the boy said.
Mushtaq was a graduate who had also done a diploma in nursing but was running a wholesale grocery shop. Locals remember him as a humble, well-mannered boy who was passionate about Azadi.
“He was loved by everyone in the village. During the 2016 uprising, he participated in every pro-freedom rally. He also never missed attending funeral prayers of killed militants,” said Abdul Rashid, a local.
Mushtaq’s father Muhammad Ibrahim Itoo could not have a last glimpse of his son. He had gone outside the state a few days ago and it was there that he learnt of his son’s death.
“His father had gone to Chandigarh a few days ago. When he heard the news of Mushtaq’s killing, he tried to arrange an air ticket but failed. As it was not possible for him to return home overnight, he gave consent for his son’s burial. It was only after his consent that we buried Mushtaq after the evening prayers,” locals told media.

Tufail’s Father Denied CoI Report: SHRC Dismisses Plea Citing Jurisdiction Limitations

Feb 20: The State Human Rights Commission dismissed a plea by Mohammad Ashraf Matoo, seeking directions to the government for providing him a copy of the report, submitted last year by one-man Commission of Inquiry headed by Justice (retd) ML Koul on the 2010 uprising in which about 120 street protesters, mostly youngsters, were shot dead.
Ashraf’s only son—Tufail Ashraf Matoo—was killed on 11 June 2010 after a tear gas canister fired by police from close range made a hole in his skull. The 17-year-old boy, who was returning home from a tuition center where he was studying for the medical entrance exam, died on the spot. His death triggered the uprising.
“The applicant (Mohammad Ashraf Matoo) seeks copy of a report of a commission which was appointed by the government under Commission of Inquiry Act 1962. The commission has submitted its report to the government and the petitioner (Ashraf) wants the (SHRC) to order supply of copy of the report to him. This request is outside the jurisdiction of the commission (SHRC),” said Justice (retd) Bilal Nazki, chairman of the SHRC, while dismissing Ashraf’s plea. The commission, however, said that Ashraf May approach appropriate authorities.
Talking to The Informative Missive, Ashraf said he had moved the application in response to a public notice by the SHRC, asking people to approach the commission for any type of human rights violation.
“I strongly believe that denial of the COI report to a victim is a human rights violation and it was for this reason that I approached the commission but to no avail,” he said.
It was actually hope for justice that prompted Ashraf to provide full support to the CoI which also denied copy of the report to him.
“By refusing the copy of Commission’s report, we think those victim families who chose not to cooperate and repose faith in the Commission were right,” he said.
The CoI submitted the report to Chief Minister Mehbooba Mufti on December 30, few days before the start of the budget session of the state’s legislature.
Soon after reading about the CoI in local newspapers on December 1, Ashraf rushed to the Commission’s office only to return disappointed after three visits.
The office provided him a small paper chit stating: “The Commission has recommended a CBI inquiry into the petition of Mohammad Ashraf Matoo, father of Tufail Matoo, a resident of Saida Kadal Srinagar, as detailed out in the report.”
“What are the details in the report that made it to recommend a CBI probe?  Do we have a right to know or not? Do I have the right to know who killed my son and how?” he said.

Not a Stray Bullet, Indiscriminate Firing Kills Woman: Jana’s Family

Feb 23:  Family of an elderly woman, Jana, wife of Ghulam Ahmad Mir of Chitragam, Shopian, accused armed forces of killing her during an encounter in Shopian in south Kashmir. However, police claimed she was killed when a stray bullet hit her inside her house. In the encounter three army soldiers were killed. 
“We wonder how we are still alive as inside walls of our rooms have bullet marks. They tried to kill us all but it was God’s mercy on us who saved us,” said Muhammad Hussain, Jana’s son.
“She tried to run away from her second story room after she heard screams of a man who was probably on the road and calling for help. She was hit probably five minutes after the gunfire started,” Hussain said.
	“After I saw my dead mother I told armed forces why you killed my mother? They said ‘stop shouting or we will kill you too,’” Hussain added.
Jana Begum, locals said, was a “spiritual lady” who had participated in funerals of many militants.
Bashir Ahmad Wani, a relative of Jana’s, told media, “Achieving martyrdom was her wish. She was my first school and often taught the local youth about the consequences of occupation and how we can achieve freedom. She was very pious and never missed prayers.”

A ‘CRPF Bullet’ Leaves Bijbehara Girl Paralyzed

Feb 03: A South Kashmir girl hit by a bullet has been battling for life from past seven months in a Srinagar hospital. His hapless father who is waiting for help from either government or any other organization has lost hope.
According to him being the sole bread earner for his family, his children are starving due to his engagement in the hospital round the clock.
Twenty-three years old Shameema Rashid of Arwani Bijbehara area of South Kashmir according to his father Abdul Rashid Lohar was shot by Para-military Central Reserve Police Force when she ventured out from her house to bring back her little brother who was part of a pro-freedom procession.
The incident occurred a day after (July 9, 2016) the death of Hizb commander Burhan Wani. “The bullet injury has paralyzed her and she is unable to move. Though doctors have been attending her regularly, but she has not made any progress,” Rashid said while sitting beside his daughter at Sheereen Bagh hospital in Srinagar.
He said that it has been over seven months he visited his family. “I am a blacksmith by profession and I and my wife don’t know how our little kids are managing the house in our absence,” he said.
Responding to a question, Rashid said that he didn’t receive any help from anyone. “Neither the government nor any NGO helped us. Not a single separatist leader visited here so far. Only my own villagers extended help to us and it is because of their help that we are able to bear the expenses of our paralyzed daughter,” he said.
	A doctor at the hospital said that the girl has suffered a bullet injury in her hip that has damaged her nerve. “It is called ‘post-traumatic mono paralyses in medical terminology. The patient is young and there are chances that she might never regenerate or she may recover,” he said.

Missing KU Student had ‘Gone into Hiding’

Feb 24: Aqib Mushtaq, the missing LLB 3rd semester student of Kashmir University, was found by police at his rented accommodation in Habbak area of Srinagar on February 24 and handed over to university authorities, police said. Aqib told media that he went into hiding to escape two strangers he saw following him on Tuesday, after threats were made to him by unknown persons over his speech at a student demonstration in the varsity campus.
“On February 21, evening, when I decided to go home (in Shopian) for a few days, I saw two men, who seemed to be in their 30s, following me. Worried, I boarded a bus and tried to evade them. I also tore my phone SIM card and went to SKIMS hospital to stay the night there,” Aqib Mushtaq told Reader.
A native of Pinjora area of Shopian, Aqib Mushtaq had mysteriously disappeared on Febeuary 21 after leaving the university campus. His fellow students said that Aqib had told them of threats he had received from unknown persons after he addressed a students’ gathering to protest civilian killings in Kulgam district.
Superintendent of Police Hazratbal told Kashmir Reader that Aqib told the police that he was under stress because of fear for his safety. He told the police that he had spent February 21 night at SKIMS hospital in Soura, February 22 night at SMHS hospital, and on February 23 he went in the day to his friend’s house in Baramulla from where he returned to SMHS hospital to spend the night there.
After recording his statement, he was handed over to the Chief Proctor of Kashmir University in presence of his relatives and friends, police said.
Aqib said that he kept roaming roads during the day and chose hospitals in Srinagar to sleep for the night. “On Friday morning, I saw a news report in a local newspaper and learnt about the protests that had taken place at the university on February 23. I immediately rushed to my rented accommodation in Habbak at about 10am. A team of police came there and picked me up. They took me to Nigeen police station, from where I was released on Febryary 24 noon,” Aqib told media.
Protests were held by university students over the mysterious disappearance of Aqib, putting pressure on the administration and police to speed up efforts to find him.

Militant’s brother alleges torture, constant harassment by SOG

Feb 19: The brother of a militant from Kulgam district has alleged that police tortured him on the night of February 8 so severely that both his kidneys have been damaged. Hilal Ahmad Ganie, brother of active militant Omar Majeed Ganie, is currently bed-ridden at his home in Souch village with a catheter inserted into his urinary tract. Doctors at SKIMS hospital in Srinagar, where Hilal was referred to by District Hospital Kulgam on February 9, have recommended a two-week bed rest to him.
Hilal said he was at his cousin’s home in Shopian when the Special Operation Group (SOG) of Shopian police arrested him along with other locals and took him to police station Shopian. The next day the Kulgam SOG came and took him to Kulgam.
“I went to my cousin’s home on Februray 7. In the night, the SOG team of Shopian cordoned off the area and I was taken into custody. The next day, at about 5pm, SOG Kulgam came and I was taken to their camp at Aamnoo (in Kulgam). There I was interrogated and tortured. They kept asking about my brother and beat me with wooden rods and leather belts. They also gave me electric shocks and constantly abused me. The torture continued the whole night. On February 9, when my condition deteriorated, they took me to District Hospital Kulgam, from where I was referred to SKIMS Srinagar. My Kidney Function Test (KFT) came as abnormal, after which doctors inserted a catheter so that I can pass urine. Doctors discharged me on February 10, telling me to take complete bed-rest for at least two weeks,” said Hilal, a private teacher by profession.
After Omar joined militant ranks, Hilal is the only son left at home. His father, Abdul Majeed Ganie, was also taken into custody for 25 days during the uprising last year. Abdul Majeed is a patient of diabetes and hypertension.
“My father was taken into custody by the SOG Kulgam. He is in his late 70s and also a diabetes patient. We are very worried for him,” Hilal said.
He said that the Kulgam SOG constantly visit their house in search of Omar and have ransacked the house many times. He alleged that the SOG men carried away the family’s washing machine, television, laptop, solar lights, blankets, and many other items.
“They raid our house even in the night. They took away every electronic item from our house. We were left only with the clothes we were wearing. They even took away the undergarments that we had put outside for drying,” Hilal said.
Hilal said he got married recently and that his wife is pregnant. “The SOG is compelling me to pick up the gun, like my brother did. We are fed up of being harassed again and again. Omar is my brother by blood and I cannot change that. What are we supposed to do?”
Omar was studying for a BSc at Government Degree College Kulgam when he joined militancy in 2015.
“Omar has chosen a separate way for himself, which we never wished for him. Now it has been more than a year and five months since he joined the Hizbul Mujahideen. The police should understand that it is not our fault,” Hilal said.
Kulgam superintendent of police Shridhar Patil told Kashmir Reader that Hilal was not tortured in the custody but “he has got some medical problems for which he was admitted in hospital”.
“Hilal was suffering from kidney stone which had got stuck in his pipe and we admitted him to district hospital Kulgam for treatment,” SP Kulgam said.

India’s Kashmir Management Doctrine 
Need to Control Mosque, Madrasa, Media for Kashmir valley narrative

Feb 24:“Control” of the mosque, madrasa, print and TV media, changes in political atmosphere, strengthening of intelligence set-up and reaching out to the moderate faction of Hurriyat are some of the suggestions in an assessment report prepared by the Centre about the prevailing situation in the Kashmir Valley. The report, compiled after securing inputs from ground, suggests long-term “actionable points” and has been sent to National Security Advisor (NSA) Ajit Doval, sources said.
Discussing the three-decade-old insurgency in the Valley, the report makes no reference to Pakistan but suggests that the political atmosphere in the Valley needs to be changed and those who were part of the 2014 election victory need to be supported and promoted by the government.
The report suggests that some of the financial schemes of the Centre may be implemented through these people that may help to bring more people in their area of influence.
Giving the break-up of Shia, Bakkarwal and Pahadi Muslim population, it suggests that a special development scheme can be implemented for them before they get lured by separatists or what it calls the widespread cult of Wahabism within the Valley. The moulvis at the mosques need to be engaged that will go a long way to quell insurgency in the Valley, it was stated.
The Ministry of Information and Broadcasting needs to revive its Jammu and Kashmir division that is largely defunct, the report says. It lists TV channels as pro and anti-India and newspapers that it says should be promoted for “perception management,” states the report. The report says those news organisations in the Valley fomenting anti-India sentiment should be “discouraged” from telecasting any “negative propaganda”.
On the role of separatists, the report calls for crackdown by Income Tax and other agencies on them but at the same time advocates engagement with the moderate faction.
To curb cases of stone-pelting, it has been advised that those indulging in such incidents need to be booked under Public Safety Act and for first-time offenders, especially teenagers, special juvenile homes may be set up so that they do not get influenced by more radical elements.
For economic development and to tackle unemployment, it has been suggested that the government come up with a special provision or legislation related to corporate social responsibility (CSR) for Jammu and Kashmir to ensure that business houses carry out activities under this head in the Valley and yearly targets for the companies may be fixed.
Suggesting an overhaul of intelligence and police management, the report suggests that to tackle militants from across the border, Special Operation Group (SOG) needs to be revived as it was done in 2002.

SIT Inquiry into 2016 Killings ‘to be completed by March’

Feb 22: The Director General of Police (DGP) has directed all heads of district police to complete by March this year their probe into civilian killings that took place during the 2016 unrest, a senior police official told media. However, there is a strong disbelief about the outcome of the SIT inquiry based on the outcome of the probes ordered by the government in some killings  of 2016. 
“We have been told by the DGP to complete the investigations,” the police official said. “Whatever be the outcome of the probe, we have to complete it by the end of the month of March,” he said.
Director General of Police SP Vaid told media that special investigation teams of the police are conducting probes into the 2016 unrest killings at the district level.
“We have constituted Special Investigation Teams (SITs) to investigate the 2016 killings. The inquiry is going on. The government has given us two to three months to complete the inquiry,” Vaid said. “We will complete it on time.”
On January 10, the government had ordered the police to set up district-level SITs to investigate deaths of “76 civilians” during the five-month-long uprising last year. The police was told that each SIT should be headed by an officer of the rank of Deputy Superintendent of Police.
However, a senior police official who heads a district said that there are bleak chances that any police officer would be charged with the killing of protesters.
“In my area, almost all the First Information Reports (FIRs) have been registered against the protesters. These protesters have attacked camps, police parties or were part of mobs who set the building ablaze,” the official said. “As a consequence, the police and other forces have acted in self defence.”
“That is why the government had been reluctant to conduct judicial probe into the killings. They know the truth,” he added.
Another police official said that in a handful of cases, the probe may lead to an outcome different from the rest.
“These cases include that of Junaid Ahmad, 12, of Saidpora, Eidgah; Shabir Ahmad Mir of Tengpora, Batamaloo; lecturer Shabir Ahmad Mangoo of Khrew, Pulwama; ATM guard Riyaz Ahmad Shah; Showkat Ahmad Itoo, 25, of Nabiza; and Saida Banoo, 42, of Churat, Qazigund,” the official said.
According to the data gathered by the JKCCS 109 civilians were killed during the 2016 uprising and more than 15,000 sustained injuries, many of them critical ones.
The inquiry into the killings holds significance as in January this year, the Justice KL Koul report on the killings during the 2010 uprising indicted the armed forces for firing upon demonstrators without magisterial orders.
About 120 people, mostly teenagers, were shot dead by armed forces during the 2010 civilian uprising.
Justice Koul, who took six years to complete the probe, said that the fire-power used against protesters was “neither commensurate nor proportionate to deal with the disturbances.”
However, the ML Koul enquiry report was not being made public and the father of Tufial Matoo, one of the victims, was denied the copy of the same when he approached the office of the Koull Commission.
Pertinently, the outcome of the enquiries ordered by the government in some cases of killings in 2016 was not known. For instance the family of lecturer Shabir Ahmad Mangoo beaten to death by the army in August 2016 has no idea of wht has happened to the probes ordered separately by the government and the army.
Qazigund killings of three civilians by army was another high profile case of 2016 where the govt. had ordered magisterial probe and asking the enquiry officer to submit his report in 15 days.  Months have been passed but the outcome of the probe is a mystery. Same is the fate with other probes ordered by the government in 2016 killings.  

Ajas Remembers ‘1992 Civilian Killings’

Feb 01: Justice continues to elude families of five persons who were killed by Border Security Forces personnel on February 1, 1992 in Ajas Thesil of Bandipora.
Remembering the victims of 1992 civilian’s killings, the people in Ajass observed the complete shutdown and organized a protest rally.
People were seeking investigation in the firing incident so that justice can be done to the victim families.
The people observed shutdown, closed all the business establishments as a mark of protest and organized a peaceful rally in Ajas to remember the victims.
Around five innocent unarmed people were put death more than 10 were injured and dozens were tortured when BSF dragged people from houses and gathered them on the lawns of Jamia Masjid where a BSF officer took out his pistol and hit five-people on the head who died infront of their inmates.
“After killing five persons, people raised the hue and cry, tried to overcome barmy BSF personnel but they faced bullets and torture instead,” Muhammad Amin then a witness alleged.
Witness told media that on that fateful day everything was normal when they woke up early in the morning.
“However as morning passed, BSF trooper arrived in the village asked all the elders and youth to come out of the homes and assemble in the lawns of Masjid”
“When people of the locality refused to come out for an identification parade and raised the slogans, the forces turned hostile and dragged people out of their house,” Amin said.
“Troopers failed to find any militant after crackdown. They started torturing youth as few people tried to raise the voice, BSF officer then silenced them with the bullets,” Amin told media.
	Five people were fired to death including Abdul Rashid Ganie (driver), Muhammad Maqbool (student), Abdul Rahim Rather (laborer), Muhammad Sultan Lone (laborer) and Wali-Ul-Rehman Khan and employee. All the five-people were killed on the spot while other six including two women were seriously included which include Muhammad Shaban Bhat, Habeebullah Hajam, Abdul Ahad Rather, Ghulam Nabi Further, Sayeda Begum and Zoona Begum,
Over two dozen youth were tortured during the crackdown, a witness said.
Among the deceased, the family of Wali-Ul-Rehman Khan is still waiting for his body. 
Wali according to witness was dragged by the BSF in injured condition later put him in their lorry and declared him dead. However, his body was not handed over to his family member who is still waiting for the justices.
There is no FIR in any police station regarding the incident.

Hawal massacre: SHRC probe points out ‘biased’ probe by police to save CRPF men

Feb 15:	The State Human Right Commission’s investigation wing said that “carelessness and deliberate attempts” by investigation officer has led to loss of the evidence to punish the paramilitary CRPF men responsible the Hawal massacre in 1990.
 	At least 67 people were killed and hundreds injured when the paramilitary troops opened fire on a peaceful procession carrying body of Mirwaiz Kashmir Moulana Mohammad Farooq in 1990.
“Since the incident is 27 years old, the evidence if any except the statements of witnesses would have lost relevance especially due to carelessness and deliberate attempts on behalf of the investigation officer namely ASP N Sarvada (IPS). At this stage some documents are to be sought from certain quarters and a fresh attempt will be undertaken to locate the injured persons and witnesses to record their statements,” said Masood Ahmed Beigh, Investigating Officer SHRC, adding that the fresh enquiry will be concluded and submitted within a “couple of months” before the Commission.
In his interim report, Beigh also said that three officers among 15 CRPF personnel of CRPF’s 69 Battalion were found responsible for indiscriminate firing on people by Court of Inquiry conducted by the paramilitary force’s Board of Officers.
“However, it isn’t known what action has been taken against the delinquent officials and whether any criminal proceedings have been conducted against them or not,” he added.
The IPS officer N Sarvada, who was ASP police headquarters then, had conducted the investigation of case from 21 May to 13 August 1990 and despite submitting 20 case diaries, he has not recorded statement of eyewitnesses including shopkeepers nor any injured person, Being said. Instead he recorded statement of CRPF officials who blamed militants for attacking them.
“It is worth to mention that at the initial stages of investigation, the IO ASP HQ, N Sarvada had deliberately conducted the investigation in a biased manner and hadn’t appreciated the significance of recording statement of the independent witnesses,” he said.
Later the investigation was taken up by sub inspector Farooq Ahmad and eventually the case was transferred to crime branch Kashmir.
“However, it isn’t known where the file was  from 13 August to 13 November 1990 but no efforts were taken to investigate the case,” he said. Later the case was again transferred to police again.
“So far the investigation has been conducted by various IOs of police and Crime Branch, however no genuine efforts have been taken to conclude the investigation to its logical conclusion,” Masood said.
He said the CRPF men, who were stationed at Islamia College and “responsible for killing innocent civilians without any reason and justification” were held responsible by COI.
“It has been agreed upon by the enquiry committee that the men on duty appeared to have forgotten the act of restraint and the art of magnanimity and if the version of civilians is any indication that CRPF after firing also indulged in most of the reprehensible conducted of depravity by helping themselves to the valuable of the dead lying around at scene of occurrence, which in itself was sufficient to close in investigation against CRPF and should have challaned in court of law as such,” he said.
The accused CRPF named by COI included DySP Lakhan Singh, Sub Inspector Mukhtar Singh, Sub Inspector Rajinder Singh, Lance Naik Satpal Singh, Constable T.A. Param, Constable Ghalib Khan, Constable Desh Raj, Constable D.Krishna, Constable Om Singh, Constable Prem Singh, Constable Y.Krishna Rao, Constable Y.Shukla, Lance Naik D.N. Singh, Lance Naik A.K. Mita and another Constable (name not mentioned) with belt number 880900551.
The SHRC has ordered inquiry by its investigation wing on a petition filed by chairman of International Forum for Justice and Human Rights Forum Ahsan Untoo.
Besides investigation, he also seeks compensation to the next of the kin of those killed as well as for those injured in the massacre.
Terming the incident as “blackest day in the history of Kashmir”, he also seeks direction to the government to allow the “interested persons” to build memorial in the name of those killed in the Hawal Massacre.

International Concern Over HR Violations
· 
· EU Concerned about HR Violations in JK 
Feb 20: The European Union said it was sensitive about human rights violations in Jammu and Kashmir and maintained that the bloc would like to see a situation where India and Pakistan have open relationship.
A high-level European Parliament delegation, in New Delhi to gauge India's views about the Trump administration and discuss various key issues concerning India-EU ties, also expressed concern over situation in Jammu and Kashmir and called for improvement in ties between India and Pakistan.
On Kashmir Chair of the EU delegation for relations with India Geoffrey Van Orden said EU is always sensitive about issues relating to human rights violations, adding certain forces do not want India-Pakistan relations to improve.
Referring to the Kashmir issue, he talked about attacks on India's forces in the valley but at the same time added that there has been a spurt in terrorist strikes in Pakistan and that Islamabad was facing serious problem to contain the menace. 
"We would like to see a situation where the two countries have an open relationship," Orden said, adding there are forces in Jammu and Kashmir which want to disrupt any progress in India-Pakisan ties.
"We have seen more activity going on in European Parliament where people are trying again to work up the Kashmir issue,” he said.
· Amnesty accuses India of using excessive force on demonstrators
Feb 22: Amnesty International criticised the Indian government for using excessive and arbitrary force on demonstrators last year post the July 8 killing of militant commander Burhan Wani.
“Security forces used arbitrary or excessive force against demonstrators on several occasions. In August, Shabir Ahmad Monga, a lecturer, was beaten to death by army soldiers,” said Amnesty in its annual report on human rights.
It also took at the Indian government for using “crude, colonial-era sedition law” to “silence government critics".
“The killing of a leader of the Hizbul Mujahideen armed group in July sparked widespread protests. More than 80 people, mostly protesters, were killed in clashes and thousands injured. At least 14 people were killed and hundreds blinded by security forces’ use of pellet-firing shotguns, which are inherently inaccurate and indiscriminate,” said the report.
“The Jammu and Kashmir government imposed a curfew which lasted over two months. Private landline, mobile and internet service providers suspended their services for weeks on orders from state authorities. The communications shutdown undermined a range of human rights. Residents reported being unable to reach medical assistance in cases of emergencies.”
“In July, the state government prevented the publication of local newspapers in Kashmir for three days. In September, Khurram Parvez, a Kashmiri human rights defender, was arrested and detained for over two months on spurious grounds, a day after he was prevented from travelling to a UN Human Rights Council session in Geneva, Switzerland. In October, the government ordered a Srinagar-based newspaper to cease printing and publication on vague grounds. Hundreds of people, including children, were placed in administrative detention. Dozens of schools were set on fire by unidentified people.”

Family Accuses Kot Balwal Jail Staff of Denying Proper Medical Treatment to Prisoner

Feb 21: The family of Abdul Rehman Tantary, detained under Public Safety Act PSA in Kot Balwal Central Jail in Jammu, has alleged that the prisoner was being given poor medical treatment despite orders from High Court (HC) to ensure adequate medical facility to him.
Tantary, an activist of Hurriyat conference (G) was arrest on November 25 by police for backing protests in Baramulla that snowballed after the killing of Hizb-ul-Mujahideen commander Burhan Wani on July 08 last year.
Subsequently, family said: “He was booked under PSA. On February, he suffered Bell’s Palsy inside the jail resulting in his paralysis and of the muscles on one side of his face.”
“He has not eaten anything from the past four days, which has further deteriorating his health. Due to paralysis on one side of his face, he is unable to chew food,” said Rehman’s son Farooq Ahmad.
The family, on February 14, moved the High Court, Srinagar seeking directions to jail authorities to provide treatment to ailing Rehman.
“Learned counsel for the petitioner states that petitioner has suffered hemorrhage, resulting in partial paralysis. If that be so, respondents shall ensure adequate medical facility to the detenu/ petitioner as is necessary in the circumstances,” Justice Dhiraj Singh Thakur, Judge stated in Habeas Corpus Petition HCB no. 634/2016.
The court also sought compliance from Superintendent, Central Jail Kote Balwal Jammu.
According to a report by Medical Officer of the Jail, Rehman was immediately referred to the emergency Govt Medical College for investigation and management after developing the health problem.
“He was examined and it was diagnosed as a case of Bell’s Palsy (Right sided LMN facial palsy). Doctors prescribed the suitable medicines which were provided to him,” states a report by Medical Officer, which has been copied to High Court and submitted to district Magistrate Baramulla as well.
Earlier, Director General of Prisons SK Mishra had also confirmed to Rising Kashmir that Rehman suffered Bell’s Palsy.
“It is a time-consuming disease, need months to recover after regular medicine and physiotherapy,” Medical Officer further mentions in his report no. CJJKB/SCH 809 dated 18 February.
According to the family, on Tuesday Rehman was again taken to Govt Medical College Jammu. Ironically the staff and security which accompanied him to the hospital had forgotten to carry along some test reports.
Ahmad alleged that despite High Court order, his father was not getting proper medicare.
“We only want the government to help us get him admitted in outside hospital or shift him to Srinagar or Baramulla jail,” he said.
“There is no such facility available in Kot Balwal Jail’s hospital which could help my father to recover from this disease,” Ahmad said.
Bell's Palsy is a disease- paralysis or weakness of the muscles on one side of the face. Damage to the facial nerve that controls muscles on one side of the face causes that side of the face to droop.

Army’s door-to-door survey evokes fear, suspicion in Bandipora

Feb 10: The door-to-door survey conducted by Army’s Rashtriya Rifles in many areas of north Kashmir’s Bandipora district has evoked fear and suspicion among local residents.
According to locals, in the last few weeks, Rashtriya Rifles unit of Army has been conducting survey in Ward 14 Nathpora, Ward 1 Naz Colony Nowpora, Usmanabad, Kharpora, Pazalpora, Zalwaan and other adjoining areas in Bandipora town.
Army men have been recording names of family members, and in some cases even seek photographs of the inmates.
According to locals, army is also registering shops, business establishments and residential houses.
Teams of army men have been visiting residential areas to conduct the survey similar to the one carried by local bodies earlier.
However, the local authorities said there was no need for army to conduct any survey in the civilian areas where the concerned departments have finished the survey process.
“We have completed the survey of all the residential areas. Army can’t do it without our permission,” an official in Bandipora Municipality said. “If they need census related details they can write to office instead visiting field without official permission.”
Wishing anonymity, a local resident in Nathpora told media, “They are enquiring about age, education qualifications and marital status of male family members and even ask for photographs also.”
Many locals told media that troopers who conducted the survey were also drawing maps and sketches of all the houses and link roads during the process. They have also marked the houses black ink.
“On February 7 around five to eight army men knocked our door and asked for details of the family members and structures around our house,” a resident in Insaafabad told media.
He said that earlier Census department and Municipality had also conducted a survey “but Army troopers are conducting survey in detail”.
“They are marking the gates and make a sketch of the house,” he added.
The army survey has raised suspicion among locals who say that local administration should have accompanied the army men during the survey if they have any government permission.
“It creates fear and panic among people when army enters their houses seeking details,” said a resident of Pazalpora.
“Many people hesitate to furnish details but troopers persuade them.”
When media enquired from the troopers about the survey, they said they had been asked by their heads to enumerate houses and family members in residential areas.
Soldiers who introduced themselves from 14 and 27 RR units of army told media that many small parties have been constituted with the task of enumerating the population as well as households.
“We are performing our duties. We know nothing about the aim of enumeration. It is another wing which later takes the surveyed record from us,” a trooper told media.
Additional Deputy Commissioner Bandipora, Khursheed Ahmed Sanie said there is no need to carry any such survey as the concerned department has already completed the same.
He added that the district administration will look into the matter.
	A local army officer said it is a routine survey carried by army every year for official purpose.
Meanwhile, army spokesperson Rajesh Kalia said the process is being done properly “as per procedure”. “There is no deviation whatsoever,” he added.

Govt Makes Public List of Informers Killed by Militants

Feb 25: For the first time in the 28-year-old anti-India insurgency, the government made public a list of informers who had been killed by militants in Kashmir.
The list of 28 deceased informers has their names, residential addresses, the names of the next of their kin and the compensation sanctioned to their families.
The list, a copy of which is in possession of media, said Rs 4 lakh have been cleared for the families of slain “sources”.
“List of compassionate appointment cases considered for payment of cash compensation @ Rs 4 lacs each in respect of person who had worked as sources with government agencies,” read the document updated on the website of Srinagar deputy commissioner on 25 January 2017.
The government has a policy of granting cash of Rs 4 lakh or a job to the immediate family member of civilians killed during militancy.
Only civilians are entitled to the compensation, not militants or their sympathisers.
The list includes the name of an informer who was killed in 1996 and the latest in 2006.

Cops Hunting for Palhalan Residents

Feb 27: The residents of Palhallan village in Baramulla district said they are living under “Gaza-like” conditions.
According to locals, the police and paramilitary forces have launched a hunt to arrest residents of Palhalan. The government forces have established several checkpoints and nakas where passenger vehicles are being searched for residents of Palhalan.
The locals told media that each passenger vehicle is being checked near SOG camp Pattan and near Hygam, Sopore, and any resident of Palhalan travelling in these vehicles is being detained.
They said the entire area is “under a siege”. Police are searching for Palhalan residents even at Pattan hospital. Two elderly men from the area had reportedly been detained at the hospital where they had gone for a medical examination.
Palhalan, which is around 32 km from Srinagar, is home to more than 14000 people living in more than 2000 households.
Massive incidents of stone pelting have been reported from the area especially for the past 10 days during which the residents had disrupted an anti-militancy operation.

Migrants To Get Medical Insurance Cover Soon

Feb 07: The migrants in Jammu and Kashmir will soon get medical insurance cover for hassle-free access to modern healthcare facilities in the state.
"The Department of Relief and Rehabilitation is going to launch a medical insurance scheme for registered migrants of the state, including Kashmiri and Jammu migrants," Minister for Relief, Rehabilitation and Reconstruction, Basharat Bukhari said.
He said the insurance will cover migrants registered under relief and pension category within and outside the state in order to provide hassle-free access to modern healthcare facilities which are beyond the reach of most migrants.
The scheme shall provide cover for hospitalisation to the insured migrants along with the dependent family members on a floater basis, minister said.
There are a total of 41,462 Kashmiri migrant families. 1,054 Jammu migrant families, who were forced to leave Poonch, Rajouri, Reasi, Ramban and other areas, are at present residing in different areas of Jammu province.
At present 37,347 Hindu migrant families, 2,252 Muslim migrant families, 1,758 Sikh families and five others are registered in Jammu.
Out of these, 18,589 Kashmiri migrant families are entitled to a cash assistance at Rs 2500 per subject with maximum ceiling of Rs 10,000 per family of four persons. They are entitled to free ration as per the scale 9 kg flour, 2 kg rice and 1 kg sugar per family per month and 10 litre of kerosene oil per family per month.

2 Kashmiris booked for not standing during anthem in Jammu Cinema

Feb 10: Two Kashmiri youths hailing from Anantnag and Handwara areas have been arrested for allegedly showing disrespect to the Indian National Anthem in Jammu.
Sources said that the duo did not stand up while the anthem was being played in a cinema hall in Jammu on Thursday.
The duo was immediately taken into custody and booked under provisions of the Prevention of Insults to National Honour Act, 1971.
Sources said that a case FIR No 31/2017 has been registered in this regard in police station Narwal.
The Supreme Court on November 30, had directed cinema halls across India to play the national anthem before the screening of every movie and stated that all persons present must stand up in respect.

Imam’s disappearance: Court issues warrant against CRPF officer

Feb 12: A local court here has issued a production warrant against a former Dy. SP (deputy commandant) of Central Reserve Police Force (CRPF) 50 battalion allegedly involved in the abduction and disappearance of Imam in this north Kashmir district in 1990.
The Chief Judicial Magistrate issued production order against R S Negi the then Deputy Commandant of 50 battalion CRPF in the case FIR No. 62/2002 under section 346 RPC of Police Station Bandipora, allegedly involved in the abduction of Abdul Khaliq Peer, Imam by profession, son of Muhammad Sayeed Peer resident of Garoora village in Bandipora.
While arguing the case the Prosecuting Officer Bandipora sought the production warrant on the grounds that the production of the accused is necessitated as the accused resides outside the state.
“The application has been presented amidst the grounds that the accused person stood involved for the commission of the offence under section 346 RPC under FIR No. 62/2002 of PS Bandipora. As the accused now stands retired and is putting up in village and post Kumbhat Chaur Tehsil Kotdwara district Pauri Garhwal, Uttarakhand, the production is being sought by the IO concerned. The grounds seem to be plausible one, hence in the facts and circumstances of the present case, the application is allowed,” reads the order issued by the CJM.
Pertinently, the case was closed April 15, 2011 and later was reopened during inspection vide No. CRB/INSP/1-2/2013/5831-35 dated 07-03-2013 and investigation of the case entrusted to Dy. SP Headquarters Bandipora.
 Background
On 3 September 1990 a patrolling party of 50 battalion CRPF headed by the then Dy SP R.S Negi picked up Abdul Khaliq Peer resident of Garoora and took him along with them. Abdul Khaliq was Imam at Onagam village of Bandipora. The family of the Imam had enquired about his whereabouts from the Dy.SP Negi, who had denied arresting the Imam. Since then his whereabouts are not known.
As the family failed even after using all means to trace the whereabouts of Khaliq, they later approached the State Human Rights Commission and filed a petition. It was only after the SHRC directions a case was registered regarding the disappearance of Abdul Khaliq Peer in Bandipora Police Station on 26-03-2002.  
During the course of investigation office of the Dy.SP headquarters Bandipora had also written a letter No. CRB/C-08/2013 dated 01-01-2014 to DIG of police north Kashmir seeking help as they had failed to trace the accused. “The instant case stands registered on the directions of SHRC received through ZPHQ letter No. SHRC/239//Bla/4420-02 dated 02-03-2002 for disappearance of one Abdul Khaliq Peer son of Muhammad Sayeed Peer resident of Onagam. On 03-09-1990 a patrolling party of 50 Bn. CRPF headed by Dy.SP Negi picked up Abdul Khaliq Peer resident of Garoora and took him along with them. Abdul Khaliq was Imam at Onagam village of Bandipora. Since then the whereabouts of Abdul Khaliq are not known. In fact, the said, Dy.SP Negi has killed him and has destroyed his body,” reads the letter, copy of which is available with Greater Kashmir.
It reads that “during the course of investigation, I.O has completed all basic formalities. However, the accused involved in the commission of crime could not be arrested as the said CRPF Unit (50 Bn.) moved outside Kashmir and actual address of the said CRPF battalion could not be ascertained.”
“Therefore, it is requested that the matter may kindly be taken with the concerned authorities for ascertaining the present whereabouts of the concerned Dy. SP Negi as well as the 50 battalion CRPF so that the investigation of the case is concluded on its merits,” the letter reads.

Alleged Army Highhandedness

This month there were several reports from different parts of the Kashmir valley where army was accused of committing different modes of human rights violations. In an incident police registered FIR while the army denies of using any forces against anybody. Generally people believes that there has been increase in the army highhandedness after the last year mass agitation. 
· Army Fires Upon Residential House at Mantrigam.
Police Register FIR, Army Spokesman Denies Charge
Feb 02: Residents of this north Kashmir village staged a protest against the alleged high-handedness of the Army and blocked the Bandipora-Gurez road.
The protestors alleged that Army harassed the villagers and fired without any provocation during the night on a residential house, of Muhammad Maqbool Sheikh. However, Army’s Srinagar based spokesman denied the charge.
“Army fired without any provocation at the house. The firing started at around 2 am and continued till 4 am. We held protest against the Army as they didn’t ask the family to come out of the house if there was any militant hiding inside the house,” said a protestor, Ghulam Mohi-ud-din Sheikh.
The protesters said that there were fourteen family members in the house at the time of firing. “They could have got killed had they not squatted on the floor. They had to run for their lives as the Army fired indiscriminately,” they said. 
The protestors demanded action against the Army soldiers involved in the act. “Such was the intensity of the firing that we are still in shock. The Army fired from all sides on our house without caring for our lives. There were no militants hiding in the house. We don’t know why they fired at our house,” said Muhammad Maqbool Sheikh. 
Meanwhile, a senior police officer of the district said that Army’s patrol party fired several shots on basis suspicion in the area. “FIR No. 01 2017 under section 7/25 Arms Act has been registered at Police Station Pethkoot. The investigation has also been started in the case,” he added.
When contacted Srinagar based Army Spokesperson, Colonel Rajesh Kalia denied the allegations saying that no house or houses were fired upon.
· Protest in Pulwama after Army men allegedly thrash teacher, students
Feb 07: Scores of students staged a protest after Army men allegedly thrashed their counterparts and a teacher inside a state-run Super 50 coaching centre here in south Kashmir.
Witnesses told media scores of students assembled in the compound of Government High school Lassipora and raised anti-Army slogans. “Some unidentified persons pelted stones at an Army vehicle outside the school compound this afternoon. This infuriated the Army soldiers, who came down, and entered into the school where the students of Super 50 coaching center were studying. The Army soldiers beat up a teacher (name withheld) and broke his two teeth, and also beat up many students,” witnesses said. “Students took out a protest march up to the main chowk Lassipora. The students, who were joined by locals staged a sit in and demanded action against the erring soldiers.” 
“As police reached the spot the angry students pelted stones on them but they were pacified by the police officials. The students were assured that action would be taken against the soldiers who beat up the teacher and the students,” witnesses added. 
“I was teaching the students in class tenth. In the mean time army soldiers entered into the classroom and dragged me out without saying anything. They beat me up ruthlessly with gun butts and blows. My two teeth were broken and I was bleeding,” the teacher alleged. “Later I was taken to Pulwama hospital for treatment,” he added.
“The army soldiers tried to drag me after I tried to stop them from beating up innocent students” another teacher alleged.
The students alleged that Army men beat them up without any reason when they were playing during break. The protests ended after the police assured the school management that erring soldiers won’t be spared.
	The headmaster of the school Gulzar Ahmad said, “The army men have beaten up my teacher when he was in class and also thrashed student. If any outsider pelted stones on them, why did not they apprehend him? Why were students and teacher beaten? We are going to register a complaint against them.”
ARMY SAYS
Commandant 55- RR Colonel Kamal Nawriyal said, “I was personally on the spot when this incident occurred. Our vehicles were passing from the school. It was break time in the school and there were some outsiders also present in the ground and they pelted stones on our vehicles.”
“Two army jawans were hit by the stones causing injury to one of them. Later the soldiers came down and rushed to the ground only to apprehend those who pelted stones. But they (stone pelters) ran away and escaped from the spot in the melee many students fell on the ground. Later a teacher complained that his teeth were broken but there is no reality in his statement and we did not beat up any student or a teacher.”
POLICE STATES 
While talking to media SSP Pulwama Rayees Bhat said “ Soon after the incident, I sent police officials there. They talked to students, locals and school management.”
“Let them register a complaint, we will take action legally. They have not registered the complaint yet,” the SSP said.
· Anti-army Protests Rock Bandipora After Locals Thrashed
Feb 20: People here in North Kashmir’s Bandipora district staged massive anti-Indian Army protest and blocked road for hours after a group of Army men allegedly thrashed some locals without any ‘provocation’.
Locals alleged that army men resorted to hooliganism and without listening to anyone they not only beat up people mercilessly but also hurled choicest abuses.
The eyewitnesses at Sadarkoot Payeen area of the district told news gathering agency CNS that there was some argument going on between a local driver and the Road Opening Party (ROP) of army.
“The ROP was not allowing the driver to move towards his destination and had asked him to halt there. The driver entered into an argument with the ROP men. As some locals assembled there and tried to pacify the driver and the ROP men whirled their guns in air and started thrashing people. Over a dozen people were beaten,” they said.
The witnesses added that shortly after the incident hundreds of people including women hit roads and staged a massive protest against the army men. They raised pro-freedom and anti-army slogans. The protesters blocked the road disrupting vehicular movement. Officials from police and local administration rushed to spot to pacify the protesters.
SP Bandipora Sheikh Zulifkar said that Army retaliated after a group of person’s pelted stones on them.
· Saderkoot Residents Stage Protest against Army’s Nocturnal Raid
Feb 21: Residents of Saderkoot Bala in this north Kashmir district staged a protest against the alleged nocturnal raids carried out by the Army, a charge denied by the Army’s Srinagar based spokesman. 
The protestors blocked Bandipora-Srinagar road, thereby hampering traffic movement. They were demanding action against army soldiers for “harassing” them during a nocturnal raid. “Posing as policemen, army soldiers from the nearby camp barged into our homes at midnight. They were in civvies,” said a protester.
The soldiers ran away after locals came to know that they were not policemen. “While fleeing they fired several shots in air, triggering panic,” he said.
They alleged that the army ransacked several residential houses. Another protesters said that they were called for a police-public meet yesterday by SDPO Sumbal where they were asked not to resort to any violence. “On one side Police ask us to remain non-violent and on the other side we are being harassed and provoked,” he said.
Meanwhile, Army’s Srinagar based spokesman, Colonel Rajesh Kalia denied the allegations saying that no army men barged into any house or ransacked the property. “At around 11 pm on 20 February an Army patrol was doing area domination when some youth taking advantage of the darkness pelted stones on the patrol party in which some soldiers sustained minor injuries. However, Army did not resort to any kind of violence. They went back to their base camp after doing the area domination. This is an attempt to malign the image of the Army,” he said.
· 3 Youths Beaten Up, Picked up by Army in Sangam
Feb 23: Hours after three soldiers were killed in an ambush by Hizb militants in Shopian district, army apprehended three boys at Sangam Chowk in Anantnag district this afternoon.
The identity of these youth could not be ascertained as the passersby were not allowed to go near them.
Aijaz Ahmed, an eyewitness, said, “Armoured vehicles of army signalled a grey colour Maruti car in which these youths were travelling in to stop. The soldiers jumped down from their vehicles and pointed their guns at the youths. Three boys were pulled out from the vehicle and taken aside by three different groups of army men and beat them up badly.”
“At the same time other soldiers tore up seat covers and removed all tyres of this car. It seemed the soldiers were looking for something. Some people tried to intervene but the soldiers asked them to stay away or get shot,” he said.
The soldiers then bundled the trio into one of their vehicles.
Although Sangam police post is about 100 metres away from the spot where the boys were beaten up, no policeman was present at the time.
Mohamad Rafi, a local, said, “How can soldiers beat someone so ruthlessly in full public view. They have killed many Kashmiris in fake encounters in the past. God knows what will be the fate of these boys.”
Defence PRO Rajesh Kalia said he would ascertain the facts.

Militarization
· 
· After demarcation, army refuses to vacate state land at High Ground
Feb 2: Army has not vacated the state land at the High Ground in Anantnag even though prime minister’s office had cleared the state government’s proposal desiring so.
Since the early 90s, the army had been occupying 458 kanals of state land.
A couple of days before the bypoll for Anantnag assembly constituency, the PMO had consented to the state government’s proposal seeking return of the land to people and state.
Also, former chief minister Mufti Muhammad Sayeed had in September 2015 told a civil-military liaison meeting that the land should be vacated at the earliest so that it could be handed over to Kashmir University for expansion of its south campus.
	During a meeting on March 18 last year, governor NN Vohra also had directed top army officials to free the land by March 31. It was learnt that Lt General DH Hooda, chief of Northern Command, had agreed to vacate the land before the deadline.
	Top officials of the army, divisional and district administration, following the directions of the former CM and governor, had visited the spot and demarcated the 456 kanals of land the army was supposed to vacate.
Eleven months have passed since the demarcation was carried out.
Sources in the revenue department said army’s refusal to vacate the land adjacent to the south campus has halted the process of the acquisition of the land.
“After the demarcation was done, army refused to vacate the land. They are asking us to acquire the land on the back side of the university campus, which will not serve any purpose,” said a revenue official posted in Anantnag.
He said the land the army was eyeing is private land and is currently sub judice.
“It will cost us about Rs 250 crore to acquire the proprietary land. We don’t have the money to acquire the land. Besides, its acquisition will consume years together as the matter is pending in the court. We are asking the army to vacate the land belonging to the estates department which is adjacent to the varsity campus but they refuse to do so,” the official said.
	Actually, the army occupies more than 2000 kanals of land at the High Ground in Fatehgarh and Donipawa karewas, most of it belonging to locals.
Assistant commissioner revenue Syed Shabir Hussain said the army is willing to vacate the private land in Fatehgarh area.
“But we asked them to vacate the state land on the front side but they refuse to do so citing security reasons,” he said.
Srinagar based defence spokesman Rajesh Kalia, when contacted, said he had no information about the issue and asked this reporter to contact the Defence Estates Office.
An officer at DEO, Amarjeet Kour, said, “A board has been constituted that has asked the 15 Corps to furnish information about 76 kanals of land which is outside fencing. We have only last month asked them to reply if the land is under their use or not. Once we get their response we will go for further process.”
· After CRPF, Army Refusing to Vacate SKUAST Land
Feb 27: After the CRPF 92 Battalion, the army is now refusing to vacate land belonging to Sher-i-Kashmir University of Agricultural Science & Technology (SKUAST) in Sopore. The army unit which shifted here from Bomai in 2009 is occupying some 15 kanals of university land along with the police SOG of Baramulla district, which, too, has set up base here. Almost 300 kanals of university land, most of which has been designated by the government to build an Indian Veterinary Research Institute, continues to remain under the CRPF’s occupation.
The university authorities have been trying to get the land vacated for the past 20 years. According to former revenue numberdar of Wadoora, Haji Mohd Aslam Bhat, the land occupied by the CRPF was given by the government to construct an Indian Veterinary Research Institute but during the 90s, the Border Security Force’s 124 Battalion occupied 300 kanals of land in and around the university campus. After the BSF went away, the CRPF took over the land and is still there, budging not an inch in more than 20 years; instead, they have started to occupy adjacent land which belongs to local villagers.
“Our village popularly known as Amar Singh Garden was relatively calm and peaceful during the time of militancy and no forces were present here, but as soon as BSF stepped in, the whole demography of our village changed. Now you will find not just CRPF but also the army and SOG in our area, which has made the local villagers scared,” Bhat said.
Media has learnt through reliable sources that the CRPF has been dilly-dallying on moving to a new facility, which has been created for them in Police Lines Handwara. The said facility has been ready for the past three years.
A student of SKUAST who gave his surname as Khan said that he has been studying at the university for the past four years and the presence of military forces remains a threat to students’ safety. There are about 250 boys and more than 300 girls staying in hostels in the university campus. They are scared to go out during evening hours even if there is any emergency, Khan said.
“The government forces routinely come to our university to withdraw money from the ATM in the campus. We have protested many times against their presence but our demands seem to fall on deaf ears. We have only two to three guards for our security, which is not enough. Either the government forces should immediately withdraw or the university should provide more security to its students as we are scared to go out of the campus,” Khan said.
Zahoor Ahmad Baba, Dean of SKUAST, said that the presence of paramilitary forces in the immediate vicinity of the institution is harassment in itself. “The land which is under CRPF is intended for setting up the IVRI institute. Even though the situation has improved in north Kashmir, the government forces are not ready to withdraw even after being provided a place in Handwara. The SKUAST has a major research facility and needs to interact with locals and study their livestock, but the presence of government forces hampers this,” he said.
	The presence of additional troops of the army and police SOG, who came from Bomai after an episode in 2009 when two young men were gunned down by army troops at Bomai in Sopore town, has added to the nuisance and the fear in minds of students.
“In a number of attempts to have this land vacated, we contacted the District Commissioner and the army brigadier but nothing helped. The government has given them permission to occupy the land and that is why they are there. Recently, our honourable VC has told us to write again to the administration and he will discuss this issue with the DGP. Let’s see what the outcome is,” the Dean said.
SKAUST University was established in 1983 and there was a time when it was a premier agricultural university. Over the years of its decline, it has lost the faculties of forestry and horticulture.



Trooper Suicide
· 
·  Soldier shot self, dies 
Feb 16: A soldier committed suicide by shooting himself with his service weapon in the garrison town of Samba on the Jammu-Pathankot national highway.
He was identified as Havildar Kishan Singh Rathore of 24 Grenadiers, a native of Chapra village in Nagpur district of Rajasthan.
“Havildar Kishan Singh Rathore shot himself in the neck with his INSAS rifle at Maheshwar, which has Samba Brigade. He died on the spot," said a police officer
The incident happened around 6.30am, he added.	
An army officer confirmed the incident and said that prima facie it appeared to be a case of suicide.
· BSF trooper kills self on LoC in Poonch 
Feb 26: A Border Security Force (BSF) trooper committed suicide at an outpost on the Line of Control (LoC) in Poonch district in Jammu and Kashmir, police said.
Reports quoting Police officials identified him as Constable Parmod Kumar, who tried to kill himself at the Khara post and was shifted to a hospital where he was declared dead.

Officially Stated
· 
· 257 PSA detenues released, 265 still in custody: Govt.
Feb 02: State Government has released 257 Public Safety Act (PSA) detenues from the police custody, while 265 are still under detention in Kashmir.
In a written reply to the question of NC MLC Qaiser Jamshed Lone, Government informed the Upper House that the police had detained as many as 522 persons under PSA in Kashmir during the unrest. 
“Out of 522 total numbers of detained persons, Government has released 257 persons and 265 are still under detention,” replied Government.
Home Department’s written reply further said that the police have registered atleast 2655 cases in Kashmir unrest till January 21, 2017. However, they did not disclose details about the detenues in view of security to them and their families.
· 11 out of 72 recommendations made by SHRC accepted: Govt
Feb 01: State Government revealed in Assembly that out of 72 recommendations made by State Human Rights Commission (SHRC), 52 were declined by the Empowered Committee of the government.
While replying to query raised by MLA Langate, Er Rashid during the question hour session in the Legislative Assembly (LA) about the number of recommendations made by SHRC which were implemented or were awaiting implementation as on date.
The Minister for Law and Justice Abdul Haq Khan in a written reply said that 72 recommendations were received from SHRC from past three years, out of which only 11 were accepted by the Empowered Committee constituted vide government order number 905 of 2008 to consider the recommendations of the Commission.
The minister further revealed that 50 recommendations of the Commission were not accepted while as nine were deferred and two recommendations of SHRC are still under examination
About the number of cases wherein recommendations stand passed and those awaiting disposals, the Law Minister said around 7319 cases were received from the inception of the Commission till January 4 this year.
“The Commission made its recommendation on 1712 cases while as 5755 cases were disposed off respectively,” added the Minister.
On the question of status of complaints pending for disposal in the SHRC with regard to the compensation against forced labor by Army during 1990 to 2003 in different villages of Langate constituency, Minister in his reply stated that the proceedings of the cases were pending before the Commission or were deferred due to the writ petition number 141 of 2014 filed by Union of India before the High Court which challenged the jurisdiction of the Commission and got stayed from the Court.
“Following the stay by High Court, the proceedings of the cases are pending till the outcome of the writ petition that lie before the J&K High Court,” Minister said.
· 363 lodged in JK jails for anti-national, militancy related activities: Govt
Feb 02: The Jammu and Kashmir Government has disclosed that 363 are languishing in jails across the state for on the charges of militancy related incidents and anti-national activities.
In a written reply to a cut motion, the Chief Minister Mehbooba Mufti, who is also Minister in-charge Home, said that 236 persons were lodged in jails for anti-national activities while 127 are behind the bars on militancy-related charges. Of the 363 persons, 269 are lodged in jails of Jammu province while remaining 94 are in prisons of Kashmir.
The infamous Kot Balwal jail Jammu houses the highest number of such inmates. As many as 94 persons are lodged there on charges of militancy and anti-national activities. It is followed by District Jail Kathua which houses 69 such prisoners.
According to details, Central jail Srinagar has 42 such prisoners, District Jail Jammu (11), District Jail Udhampur (31),District Jail Rajouri (01), District Jail Poonch (7), District Jail Kishtwar (7), District Jail Anantnag (11), District Jail Baramulla (47), District Jail Kupwara (36) and Sub Jail Hira Nagar (7).
· No proposal for separate colonies for Kashmiri Pandits in JK: GoI
Feb 07:  Putting all speculation to rest, the Government of India (GoI) informed Parliament there was no proposal for setting up separate colonies for displaced Kashmiri Pandits in Jammu and Kashmir.
Minister of State for Home Hansraj Gangaram Ahir said this while replying to a written question from Ashwini Kumar of Congress in Lok Sabha.
The minister said there was no proposal for setting up Sainik Colonies in the state. 
This issue had become a political controversy in the Valley when reports appearing in media suggested for creation of separate Sainik Colonies for security personnel.
Ahir's reply flies in the face of claims made by some BJP leaders in Jammu and officials that separate colonies were being set up for Kashmiri Pandits in the Valley who had migrated from the Valley at the onset of militancy in 1990.
As many as 62,000 Kashmiri Pandit families are registered as migrants of which 40,000 are in Jammu, 20,000 in Delhi and two thousand in rest of the country.
The minister informed the house that government has approved only one scheme on November 18, 2015 under which additional 3000 jobs will be provided to the Pandits besides construction of 6000 transit accommodation for them.
· Police strength reaches 90000, highest recruitment done this year since 2009
Feb 12: The strength of police personnel in Jammu and Kashmir has reached nearly 90,000 with highest number of recruitments done this year since 2009 due to spate of protests in the valley.
Home department documents reveal that the present strength of police personnel in the state was over 89119. This, however, excluded the number that was contributed by Special Police Officers (SPOs) here. Records reveal that since 2009 the highest recruitment was done this year and the number was 5035.
In last fifteen years highest recruitment was done in 2009 and the number stood at 7891. In 2010 the number of police personnel who were recruited was 1250, while as it was significantly lesser in subsequent years and was 452 in 2011, 266 in 2012, 419 in 2013, 39 in 2014, 74 in 2015 and 214 in 2016
In 2002 only 89 personnel were recruited, 532 in 2003, 1149 in 2004, 3134 in 2005, 4051 in 2006, 1122 in 2007, 3031 in 2008 and 7891 in 2009.
	According to officials while the process of recruitment was started in 2016 only, most of the orders were finalized in January this year. Situation in Kashmir continues to remain grim after the death of HM militant commander, Burhan Muzafar Wani, whose funeral was attended by thousands of people triggering a wave of protests across Kashmir. Police resorted to spree of arrests with more than 8,500 people being detained in the last seven months.
However, while protests continued, young boys took part in the police recruitment rallies after the special police battalions were sanctioned by the Home department to meet with the demand of extra deployment of personnel in the restive Kashmir region.
So far police have registered 2700 cases of stone pelting and majority of the people booked for incidents of law and order problems are the youth in the age group of 18-30. While 3987 people in the age bracket of 18-30 were arrested, 1320 was the number in the higher age group and teenagers stood at 519. Majority of the youth have however been released on bail by the courts here, official records show, but 114 are in judicial custody as of now.
· Army chief warns people who come to rescue of militants 
Feb 15:Army chief Bipin Rawat said that people who attempt to come to rescue of militants during anti-militancy operations will be treated as ‘Over Ground Workers’ of militants and those displaying Pakistani and IS flags will be dealt as anti-nationals.
“They will face harsh actions,” he said.
General Rawat said government forces were facing higher casualties in Kashmir because of the manner in which the local population is preventing them from conducting operations and “at times even supporting the terrorists to escape”.
“We would now request the local population that people who have picked up arms, and they are the local boys, if they want to continue with the acts of terrorism displaying flags of ISIS and Pakistan, then we will treat them as anti-national elements and go helter-skelter for them.
They may survive today but we will get them tomorrow. Our relentless operations will continue,” he said.
General Rawat said those supporting “terror activities” are being given an opportunity but if they continue with their acts then “security forces will come down hard on them.”
“We are giving them an opportunity, should they want to continue to then, we will continue with relentless operations may be with harsher measures and that is the way to continue,” he told reporters after laying wreath to the four soldiers who were killed in gunfights with militants in Handwara and Bandipora.
· Police lets off nearly 2800 youth in stone-pelting cases
Feb 25: Police has released as many as 2761 youth against whom there were complaints that they took part in stone-pelting protests after getting an undertaking from them that they will not indulge in any such activities against the state in future.
A senior police official said: “We had reports from our sources and complaints from some people that the youth had indulged in stone pelting incidents in the last over seven months of unrest, but no case was registered against them after they gave an undertaking that they wouldn’t indulge in any such activities.”
He added that there were over 2600 cases of stone pelting registered in the state and nearly 6000 people were arrested. Most of the people who were arrested were in the age bracket of 18-30 years, according to official records.
Director General of Police, S P Vaid said the youth gave an undertaking before the magistrate that they wouldn’t take part in any “anti-national activities”.
“For the promise of good behaviour no case was registered against the youth,’’ he said.
A senior police official said besides asking the youth to fill up a proforma and give an undertaking at the concerned police station, they were also made to furnish an affidavit in this regard.
“The cases were bound down mostly in cases where we were doubtful about the involvement of youth in incidents of stone pelting. Also it is a preventive measure to ensure that the conditions remain normal in Kashmir and youth were set free after being advised good behaviour. We have given them the chance to reform,’’ said a senior government official.
Most of the cases where youth were let off are from south Kashmir areas which witnessed massive protests in the summer unrest after the killing of HM militant commander, Burhan Muzafar Wani.
Top police officials said majority of the youth who were earlier arrested in incidents of stone pelting were set free on bail by different courts, but added that the investigation was going on in many of the FIRs which were registered against people.
In some of the police stations a common FIR was registered about the involvement of a group of people and those who have been booked also include some government employees who have been placed under suspension.
· '2,580 CRPF men injured in JK'
Feb 27: A total of 2,580 Central Reserve Police Force (CRPF) personnel have been injured in over 200 violent incidents in Jammu and Kashmir after the killing of Hizbul Mujahideen militant leader Burhan Wani last July.
Data from the CRPF said that its troopers were injured in 142 stone pelting incidents, 47 grenade blasts, three firing incidents and 43 instances of acid attacks or petrol or kerosene bomb attacks in the state. 
Of the injured troopers, 122 inflicted grievous injuries, the data said.
The unrest in Jammu and Kashmir began July 9, a day after the death of Wani in a gunfight with security forces. Over 90 civilians were killed and around 12,000 injured in the violence.
"An additional 158 companies (over 16,000 personnel) of the CRPF were deployed in Jammu and Kashmir considering the surge in violence both in terms of militant activities and law and order situation," outgoing CRPF Director General K. Durga Prasad told IANS.
He also said the attacks on the force's personnel by Jammu and Kashmir's civilians came as they were threatened by the militants. 
"Locals in the state are obstructing our counter-militancy operations as they are under duress by the militants. However, the situation has improved compared to last year," Prasad said. 
Prasad, who will retire from the service on February 28, also said that the Home Ministry as well as the Central Welfare Fund of CRPF will provide financial assistance to the troopers injured in the stone pelting attacks in Jammu and Kashmir. 
The CRPF chief said that the Home Ministry would provide Rs 2,500 to those who suffered minor injuries and Rs 7,500 for the personnel injured grievously. 
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	-
	-

	Feb 16
	1
	-
	-

	Feb 17
	-
	-
	-

	Feb 18
	-
	-
	-

	Feb 19
	-
	-
	-

	Feb 20
	-
	-
	-

	Feb 21
	-
	1
	1

	Feb 22
	-
	-
	-

	Feb 23
	3
	-
	1

	Feb 24
	-
	-
	-

	Feb 25
	-
	-
	-

	Feb 26
	1
	-
	-

	Feb 27
	-
	-
	-

	Feb 28
	-
	-
	-

	Total 
	11
	11
	4

	Total Killings 
	26 Killings 



Chronology of Incidents
Feb 01: Clashes erupted between youth and government forces in Murran village of Pulwama district during a search operation. The search and cordon operation was launched by government forces following an input about the presence of  militants at Bonapora Murran village of Pulwama, sources said.
Feb 02: Armed forces claimed that it has detected and defused IED at Charsoo, Pulwama on the Srinagar-Jammu highway. 
Feb 03: Amid complete shutdown across Kashmir, at least six people were injured in clashes that broke out in various parts of the Valley on Friday against the death penalty announced by a West Bengal court to a youth from South Kashmir.
Feb 04: Two local militants of Hizbul Mujahedeen ¬(HM) were killed and two police officers injured in a brief encounter in Sopore town of North Kashmir’s Baramulla district, police said. SSP Baramulla, Mir Imtiyaz Hussain identified the slain militants as Azhar Khan of Kupwara and Sajad Ahmad Lone son of Mohammad Akbar Lone of Eidipora Bomai, Sopore.
Feb 05: No incident of violence reported. 
Feb 06: No incident of violence reported.
Feb 07: No incident of violence. 
Feb 08: No incident of violence.
Feb 09: A complete shutdown was observed across Kashmir on AfzalGuru’s fourth anniversary.Clashes were reported between armed forces and protests from Sopore area. 
Feb 10: Seven persons were injured in clashes in Sopore and Palhalan areas of Baramulla district during clashes with armed forces. Strict restrictions were imposed around UNMOGIP office at Srinagar to foil the peoples march called by pro-freedom leadership.
Feb 11: Normal life was crippled as the valley observed shut down over the death anniversary of Maqbool Bhat on the call of pro-freedom leadership. Protest march was held at Trehgam the home town of Maqbool Bhat. 
Feb 12: Four militants, two soldiers and a civilian were killed and three soldiers injured during a nightlong gunfight in Frisal area of Kulgam district. Another civilian was killed and more than two dozen youths suffered injuries, most of them bullet and pellet injuries, during the clashes that erupted near the encounter site. The deceased militants were identified as Mudasir Ahmed Ahmed Tantray alias Asim of Redwani Kulgam; Wakil Ahmed Thokar of Harigam Kulgam; Farooq Ahmad of Chak Dasand and Younis Ahmad Lone of Hawara, Kulgam.Mudasir and Wakil were associated with Lashkar-e-Toiba, and Farooq and Yunus belonged to Hizb-ul-Mujahideen. The deceased civilians were identified as Ashiq Ahmad Reshi son of Abdul Majid Reshi of Frisal, Kulgam and Mushtaq Ahmed Itoo son of Muhammad Ibrahim Itoo of Hatigam, Srigufwara. Mushtaq Ahmed Itoo died while he was taken to the hospital. 
Feb 13: Complete shutdown was observed in Kashmir against the killings in Frisal area of Kulgam district while authorities imposed curfew-like restriction in some parts of South Kashmir to foil anti-India protests.
Feb 14:  Three army soldiers and a LET militant of foreign origin Abu Musa were killed in an encounter that took place in Parray Mohalla of Hajin in Bandipora district. In another encounter, three militants and an army major were killed at Handwara area of Kupwara district.
Feb 15: To foil the Kulgam Chalo march called by the joint resistance leadership, government authorities increased forces deployment across south Kashmir even as complete shutdown was observed in Kulgam district for the fourth consecutive day against the killing of four local militants and two civilians on Sunday. Clashes broke out between government forces and local youth in Bijbehara and Pulwama townships. All shops, business establishments, private offices, coaching centers, and petrol pumps remained shut at district headquarter Kulgam and in other towns of the district, including Quimoo, Khudwani, Frisal, Yaripora, Arwani and other areas.  
Feb 16:  A soldier committed suicide by shooting himself with his service weapon in the garrison town of Samba on the Jammu-Pathankot national highway. He was identified as Havildar Kishan Singh Rathore of 24 Grenadiers, a native of Chapra village in Nagpur district of Rajasthan.
Feb 17: Two cops were injured in a grenade explosion triggered by suspected militants in Nowgam area of Srinagar district. While at several places anti-India protests were held post Friday prayers leaving twenty persons injured. 
Feb 18: Army called off its search operation, laid after receiving inputs of militant presence, after the villagers protests in Pulwama district. 
Feb 19: No incident of violence reported. 
Feb 20: No incident of violence reported.
Feb 21: A 26 year old youth of South Kashmir’s Kulgam district who had sustained multiple pellet injuries during last year’s uprising died at a local orphanage, the ambulance of which he used to drive. While doctors said they could not establish the cause of death, police maintained that initial investigations reveal he died of “natural causes.” While the paramilitary BSF claimed that it foiled an infiltration bid by killing a militant along the Line of Control in Jammu’s Rajouri district. The identity of militant was not ascertained. 
Feb 22: Protestors forced the government forces to call off search operations at two different places in south Kashmir’s Kulgam district, hurling stones on the forces, to help militants escape, even as at least 10 protestors sustained injuries in forces action, witnesses and reports said.
Feb 23: At least three army men were killed and five others including a Lt Colonel and Major injured when militants of Hizbul Mujahideen attacked their patrol party in Shopian district of South Kashmir. A woman was also killed after being hit by a stray bullet inside her house during the cross-fire. The police official said a woman identified as Taja Begum, wife of Ghulam Muhammad Mir of Chitragam was hit by a stray bullet in her house during the cross fire. However, her family said Jana (70), a mother of seven, was killed when forces indiscriminately at their house. However, her family said Jana (70), a mother of seven, was killed when forces indiscriminately at their house. While more than seven youth, who were a part of the crowd that “disrupted a search operation,” sustained injuries when police fired teargas shells and pellets to disperse them at Palhallan in this north Kashmir district. However, Police said that search operation concluded successfully.   
Feb 24: Militants attacked a police post in Kakapora area of South Kashmir’s Pulwama district.SP Pulwama, Rayees Muhammad Bhat told media that militants lobbed a grenade towards the police post in Kakapora area at around 7.30 pm. He said the grenade exploded outside the police station without causing any damage or injuries. While massive clashes erupted after Friday congregational prayers in old Srinagar and Sopore area of north Kashmir’s Baramulla district with security forces resorting to tear gas shelling to quell the protests. 
Feb 25: No incident of violence reported. 
Feb 26: A Border Security Force (BSF) trooper committed suicide at an outpost on the Line of Control (LoC) in Poonch district in Jammu and Kashmir, police said. Reports quoting police officials identified him as Constable Parmod Kumar, who tried to kill himself at the Khara post and was shifted to a hospital where he was declared dead.
Feb 27: Minister of State for Forest, Environment & Ecology, Sheep and Animal Husbandry, and MLA Pampore, Zahoor Ahmad Mir’s security guards had to fire few shots in air after scores of angry youth pelted stones at his cavalcade in Ratnipora village of Pulwama district. Three cops were injured in stone pelting. 
Feb 28: No incident of violence reported.
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